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CALA AT THORNTONHALL, SOUTH LANARKSHIRE

CALA is the UK’s most upmarket major 

homebuilder, a leading developer 

of premium homes and sustainable 

communities in affluent areas of southern 

England and Scotland.

We are a highly ambitious, fast growing 

group with the capability and platform for 

significant further expansion. We operate 

through eight regional businesses in the UK 

which target many of the country’s strongest 

markets. Four of these cover the Home 

Counties (excluding central London), with 

a fifth operating in the southern Midlands. 

CALA is the leading premium homebuilder 

in Scotland where we have three regional 

businesses covering the principal cities of 

Glasgow, Edinburgh and Aberdeen.

The CALA brand is highly regarded within 

the industry and aspirational for many 

homebuyers. With a customer-led focus, 

we design places and build homes for 

purchasers who value a premium product 

and we have a strong heritage in the market 

for detached family homes. The homes 

we build are characterised by exceptional 

design, sector-leading build quality and we 

have a passion for providing our customers 

with a great home buying experience.

We are differentiated by our clear focus  

on a market segment that comprises an  

equity-rich and financially resilient  

customer base. At £497,000, we continue 

to have the highest private average selling 

price (‘ASP’) of the top 10 major UK  

homebuilders outside central London.
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I am delighted to present the excellent 

results achieved by CALA for the financial 

year to 30 June 2017 and in particular the 

exceptional progress made in transforming 

the size and influence of the group.

During the year we increased volumes by 

46%, completing 1,677 new homes (2016: 

1,151), generating revenue of £747.9 

million, up 27% compared with last year. 

This strong performance keeps the group 

firmly on track to achieve its strategic growth 

ambitions and deliver annual revenue of 

around £1 billion by 2020.

I am pleased to report that the significant 

increase in operating activity has driven  

a fifth consecutive year of record profits  

with a 21% increase in profit before tax to  

£70.4 million.

Market conditions during the year have 

been favourable for the homebuilding 

industry and any weakness around the EU 

referendum a year ago and the general 

election more recently has been short-lived. 

The housing market has been supported 

by the low cost of mortgage finance which 

remains readily accessible and a high 

proportion of new home transactions 

continue to be assisted by Help to Buy. 

Homebuyer confidence is strong, driven 

by high levels of employment and a 

stable economy despite the uncertainty 

surrounding the nature of the UK’s future 

relationship with the EU. We have seen 

some moderation in the rate of house price 

rises during the year but regard this as 

helpful for buyer affordability and therefore 

positive for the market as a whole.

Trading in our market segment and areas 

of operation has been generally strong and 

this is reflected in our private reservation 

rate, being 26% higher than the previous 

financial year. The housing market in 

Aberdeen has been stable during the last 

12 months and we have capitalised on 

this to increase the number of homes sold 

in the region and to invest in new land, 

much of which is already in development.  

Separately, the weakness at the top end 

of the market brought about by the high 

burden of Stamp Duty Land Tax (‘SDLT’)  

at this price point remains problematic.   

We are continuing our planned transition 

away from this market segment and 

limiting our exposure to homes priced 

above £1 million which can be seen in 

the commensurate reduction in CALA’s 

private ASP this year to £497,000 (2016: 

£538,000). The residual impact of the 

challenges in these particular market 

segments has once again held back our 

good progress during the year and resulted 

in some further housing margin dilution. 

However, our North region in Aberdeen 

represented only 6% of group revenue in  

the financial year and we have very few 

homes priced above £1 million remaining 

in our landbank.

Growing a business at the pace we have 

seen in CALA over the past year requires 

a serious level of energy and organisation 

and I have been impressed by how the 

team has in equal measure continued to 

improve the underlying strength of the 

business. A key component of this has 

been the investment in our capability with 

further significant recruitment, induction and 

training to ensure our staff are engaged 

and enabled to deliver effectively. During 

the year we have made changes to our 

delivery process to improve the quality and 

service provided to our customers. We have 

also had a very successful year in the land 

market as we build the future potential of 

the group.

During the year Moira Sibbald intimated 

her intention to retire and has resigned as 

Group Company Secretary, although she  

will continue in her role as General  

Counsel to facilitate a managed transition 

for her successor. On behalf of the board 

I would like to wish Moira a long and 

fulfilling retirement and thank her for her 

expert advice and guidance during the last 

16 years.

Finally, I would like to thank the whole 

CALA team for their continued commitment, 

hard work and professionalism, which has 

been invaluable in this year of significant 

achievement. I would also like to thank 

our subcontractors, suppliers and major 

shareholders who have been essential in 

supporting the step-change in our delivery 

during 2017.

“I AM PLEASED TO REPORT THAT 
THE SIGNIFICANT INCREASE IN 
OPERATING ACTIVITY HAS DRIVEN  
A FIFTH CONSECUTIVE YEAR OF 
RECORD PROFITS WITH A 21% 
INCREASE IN PROFIT BEFORE TAX.”

MANJIT WOLSTENHOLME 
Chairman

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

(2016: £60.1 million) 
Before exceptional items and revaluations

(2016: £538,000) 
Excluding affordable housing

(2016: 18.6%)

(2016: £587.1 million)

(2016: 14.3%) 
Before exceptional items and revaluations

(2016: 82)

(2016: 1,151)

(2016: 21.8%)

(2016: £5.5 billion) 
Gross Development Value (‘GDV’)

PRIVATE ASP

RETURN ON  
CAPITAL EMPLOYED  

OPERATING MARGIN

OVERALL CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION SCORE

REVENUE PROFIT BEFORE TAX

HOUSE SALES  
GROSS MARGIN

CONTRACTED  
LANDBANK  

£68.5M

£497,000

18.6%

£747.9M

12.4%

84

20.0%

£5.9B

SOLD

HOME SALES

1,677
+14%

-8.0%

=

+27%

-1.9%

+2

+46%

-1.8%

+7.0%
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PARKLANDS, READING, BERKSHIRE

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Strategic Report contains information which has been 

provided for the purpose of assisting shareholders, as a body, in 

assessing the strategies adopted by the group and the potential 

for those strategies to succeed. Any forward-looking statements 

have been made in good faith based on the information 

available at the time of approval of this report, but actual 

outcomes may be different from those anticipated because of the 

inherent risks in the markets in which the group operates, and no 

assurances can be given about any such statements.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CALA’s principal strategic objective is to reinforce its position as the UK’s most upmarket major homebuilder by increasing its presence  

in the premium segment of the market in its areas of operation.

Our growth ambition is to generate annual revenue of around £1 billion by 2020, driven from CALA’s existing operating platform and 

regional network which has a potential capacity to deliver approximately 2,500 homes per annum. Fundamental to achieving our growth 

aspirations is the strength and depth of our high quality landbank and this underpins the confidence we have in meeting the ambitious  

target we have set. Having already generated significant volume growth during the past few years is further confirmation that our strategy  

is firmly on track.

Our determination to achieve this increased scale is equally matched by our commitment to deliver high quality sustainable financial returns 

and industry-leading customer service whilst remaining true to the four key values which define the culture of our business – Passion, Quality, 

Respect and Delivery.

We will ensure our strategy generates value for shareholders in a responsible and controlled manner by maintaining a resilient balance sheet 

through the business cycle with a clear focus and disciplined approach to margin delivery and return on capital.

BROOKWOOD FARM, WOKING, SURREY

OUR STRATEGY AND AMBITION

Scaling up 
5 divisions in 
England and 
3 divisions in 
Scotland

Infrastructure in 
place to deliver 
capacity of 
c. 2,500 homes

Increasing 
presence in affluent 
markets in South 
East England

• STRONG FINANCIAL
 RETURNS

• OPERATING
 EFFICIENCY

• ANNUAL REVENUE 
 OF C. £1 BILLION
 BY 2020
 
 

UNDERPINNED BY THE STRENGTH OF A HIGH QUALITY LANDBANK

OUR GROWTH PLANS
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STRATEGIC REPORT STRATEGIC REPORT

HOW WE DO IT

CALA’s people, along with the positive 

and supportive culture that runs through 

everything we do, are central to our 

business success. Our talented employees 

bring the CALA difference to life through 

the delivery of stunning, high quality, homes 

in sought-after locations and providing an 

exceptional homebuying experience for 

our customers. Our dedicated staff are 

committed to adding value at every stage of 

the development process; from identification 

of premium sites, securing the optimum 

planning permission to display our strong 

design credentials through to handing over 

the keys to our buyers, and looking after 

their needs beyond moving in.

There are five key components of our 

business approach:

FUTURE FOCUS
• Expand our group procurement 

activity to accelerate value creation

• Continue to engineer ‘Light & Space’ 
house types to enable more  

efficient construction

FUTURE FOCUS

• Build the capability of our teams

• Engage and enable our employees

FUTURE FOCUS

• Further expand the size and quality  
of our landbank to underpin our  

growth plans

• Secure timely planning permission  
for key sites in the landbank

FUTURE FOCUS

• Regain 5-star builder status

• Enhance customer journey

FUTURE FOCUS

• Increase our NextGeneration  
Sustainability Benchmark score

• Reduce our AIIR and number of  
accidents on-site

FIND OUT MORE  
ON PAGE 25

FIND OUT MORE  
ON PAGE 21

FIND OUT MORE  
ON PAGE 17

FIND OUT MORE  
ON PAGE 33

FIND OUT MORE  
ON PAGE 29

OUR 
CUSTOMERS
The quality of the homes we deliver  

to our customers and the way in 

which we service and care for their 

needs throughout the development 

process is the principal driver of  

our business.

OUR LAND & 
PLANNING
A strong, flexible landbank of 

sufficient length is essential to deliver 

sustainable financial returns and in 

that regard our focus is to maintain  

a disciplined approach  

to supplementing our landbank  

with high margin sites in  

premium locations.

OUR  
PEOPLE

Our success as a company relies 

on the dedication, commitment and 

talent of our teams. To allow them to 

deliver to their potential we provide 

a work environment that ensures 

our employees are engaged and 

enabled. We also promote a culture 

that empowers our staff and nurtures 

high performance. We conduct our 

business in an open and professional 

manner underpinned by strong 

ethical values that promote good 

decision making.

OUR  
HOMES

At CALA we take great pride in the 

design and quality of the homes 

we build in conjunction with our 

subcontract partners. We set a high 

priority on ensuring our developments 

are attractive, integrate successfully 

with local areas and are well 

managed through the build process.

OUR 
SUSTAINABLE 

WAY
Our goal is to make a positive 

contribution to those stakeholders 

and communities impacted by 

our business activities and create 

an enduring legacy for future 

generations. We will carry out our 

development activity in a safe way for 

our staff and customers, that seeks to 

minimise any negative impact upon 

the environment while enhancing 

local areas.
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OUR BUSINESS IS DEFINED BY THE QUALITY OF WHAT WE 
DELIVER TO OUR CUSTOMERS AND THE WAY IN WHICH WE 
SERVICE AND CARE FOR THEM. 

OUR CUSTOMERS
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OUR CUSTOMERS STRATEGIC REPORT

2017 AT A GLANCE

ON TRACK FOR HBF 5-STAR RATING

TOP LEVEL GOLD AWARD FROM IN-HOUSE RESEARCH

OVERALL SATISFACTION SCORE OF 84

9 AWARD-WINNING SITE MANAGERS

CUSTOMER SERVICE EXCELLENCE AWARD WINNER AT SCOTTISH HOME AWARDS 2017

Our business is defined by the quality 

of what we deliver to our customers and 

the way in which we service and care for 

them. We have our own Customer Charter, 

adopt the Consumer Code and have in 

place a Group Customer Service Director 

to focus on the delivery of customer service 

excellence right across the business. 

Assessing and reviewing our performance 

in satisfying our customers is a vital 

component of successful delivery and 

continuous improvement. We are 

independently rated by two external 

organisations; firstly by the National House 

Building Council (NHBC) in the National 

New Homes Customer Satisfaction Survey 

conducted for the Home Builders Federation 

(‘HBF’) and secondly by private consultants 

In-house Research who assess much of the 

homebuilding industry. 

Our ‘Recommend’ score in the 2017 

NHBC survey covering sales completions 

in the 12 months to 30 September 2016 

fell fractionally below the 90% threshold 

to achieve the top 5-star rating for the 

8th year running. Whilst still a strong 

score by industry standards this is not 

good enough for CALA and a renewed 

focus on the quality of finished homes has 

resulted in a significant improvement to our 

performance, with the ‘Recommend’ score 

currently well in excess of 90% for the year 

to 30 September 2017 and safely in the 

NHBC 5-star category.

In-house Research reported 90% of CALA’s 

customers in 2016 would recommend CALA 

to a friend, achieving their top level Gold 

award. For our most recent measurement 

period, being the 12 months to 30 June 

2017, we achieved an overall satisfaction 

score of 84 (2016: 82), as measured by  

In-house Research, and 92% (2016: 

91%) of our customers said they would 

recommend CALA.

Robert and Jennifer Hay were quick 
to praise the service of CALA Homes 
when they found their dream home at 
Dalmeny Park in South Queensferry.

Robert said “We quickly decided that 
we preferred new builds and that we 
liked CALA’s in particular, as they felt 
like a bit of a step up from the others. 
We had considered detached homes at 
other CALA developments, but when we 
weighed everything up, we just really 
liked the location of Dalmeny Park.  
It has a nice high street near the water 
and well-established commuter links.

Working with the Sales Advisors Dawn 
and Frances throughout the reservation 
process was great. They were always 
really friendly and knowledgeable and 
they were quick to come back to us 
whenever we had a question that they 
couldn’t answer straightaway. They 
were a pleasure to deal with. You can 
tell that CALA really thinks about things 
from the buyer’s point of view and 
looks after them well, so we’d definitely 
recommend both CALA Homes and 
Dalmeny Park”.

CASE STUDY

ROBERT AND JENNIFER HAY AT HOME
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NHBC Pride in the Job is a UK-wide 

competition dedicated to recognising 

site managers who achieve the highest 

standards in homebuilding and is the most 

prestigious accolade a site manager can 

receive. From more than 16,000 managers 

competing we are delighted that nine of 

CALA’s top site managers were included 

amongst this year’s Quality Award winners. 

In addition, we have also received high 

profile external recognition for our customer 

service performance, winning the Customer 

Service Excellence Award at the Scottish 

Home Awards for the second year running.

As CALA grows, our customer service 

proposition needs to be delivered more 

consistently to the same high standards 

across the group. We have identified best 

practice in our customer-facing processes 

and are now delivering this across all 

regions. We have worked this year to raise 

the profile and visibility of our customers 

and ensure that our interaction with them 

is recorded, reported and reviewed. The 

introduction of the online customer portal 

paired with bespoke Home Owner Guides 

for each purchaser has improved our level 

of communication with our customers 

and the information they receive about 

their home. This year we will deliver a 

new, enhanced customer portal to take 

this journey to the next level as we seek to 

engage more effectively with our customers 

after home completion in ways they want to 

be communicated with.

The speed of growth of the business 

presents challenges in training and never 

more so than with frontline members of the 

team. An enhanced induction process for 

sales, construction and customer service 

staff joining CALA ensures that at the outset 

they are properly educated and trained in 

the high standards the business adopts and 

the processes that must be followed.

The customer service teams in each 

operating region are primarily charged 

with looking after our customers’ needs 

once they have moved into their new home. 

We have embarked on a group-wide shift 

of this focus to put the customer firmly at 

the heart of what we do by enhancing the 

role of Head of Customer Service in each 

region. They will become a champion of  

the customer throughout the process of  

creating a CALA development and 

representing them before they interact  

with the business – from buying land, 

designing our developments, through 

to achieving planning consents and the 

appointment of contractors. By having 

a greater focus on the customer we will 

produce homes and a buying experience 

more closely matched with the expectations 

of our target market and be recognised 

more consistently as the homebuilder of 

choice by prospective purchasers.

OUR CUSTOMERS

OUR 9 NHBC AWARD-WINNING SITE MANAGERS

THERE REMAINS OVERALL, A SUBSTANTIAL SHORTFALL IN THE  
LEVEL OF NEW HOUSING BEING BUILT WHICH POINTS TO A 
REQUIREMENT FOR ACTION TO BE TAKEN TO INCREASE THE  
LEVEL OF HOUSING STARTS SIGNIFICANTLY.

OUR LAND AND PLANNING
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OUR LAND AND PLANNING STRATEGIC REPORT

KINLEITH MILL, CURRIE, EDINBURGH

Building enough homes is a key focus 

of national policy, as evidenced by the 

title of the recent White Paper ‘Fixing 

Our Broken Housing Market’. There is a 

general consensus that more homes are 

required, backed up by the Government’s 

most recent household growth statistics for 

England (July 2016) showing an average 

of 210,000 additional households per 

annum from 2014-2039. Contrasting with 

this is the rate of new housing completions 

in the year to December 2016 at 141,000. 

In Scotland, National Records of Scotland 

reports the household formation rate from 

2014-2024 at 16,200 per annum  

(January 2017), so with 16,500 homes 

completed in the year to December 2016 

there is at best, a very fine balance, with  

no margin for error. There remains 

overall, a substantial shortfall in the  

level of new housing being built which 

points to a requirement for action to be 

taken to increase the level of housing  

starts significantly.

In both England and Scotland, in response 

to this shortfall, there are Government 

initiatives and forthcoming planning and 

housing legislation aimed at increasing 

the overall supply of housing. In 

addition, there is already a serviceable 

policy framework in place to encourage 

housing delivery through the ‘National 

Planning Policy Framework’ in England 

and ‘Scottish Planning Policy’ and ‘The 

National Planning Framework’. Overall, 

the principle of a presumption in favour of 

development which is sustainable and the 

reduced weight given to plans which are 

out-of-date, has led to a more permissive 

planning environment and a consequential 

increase in the availability of development 

sites which has assisted CALA in meeting 

the challenging land acquisition targets we 

have set ourselves as a growing business.

The high level housing policy message 

has not however, translated to universally 

smooth progress of sites through planning 

to development on the ground. Firstly 

there is a fragmented relationship between 

the national commitment to increase 

the delivery of housing and the smaller-

scale workings of local politics. This often 

leads to negative outcomes for proposed 

new housing, in particular the overturn 

of positive recommendations once 

applications arrive at Planning Committee 

stage. Secondly, planning departments 

are significantly under-resourced, and 

there has been an escalation of very real 

and considerable delays occurring to the 

approval of planning and reserved matters 

applications, drafting of section agreements 

and the discharge of conditions, holding up 

otherwise-approved development. 

Following the closure of Kinleith Paper 
Mill at the beginning of the 1900s, the 
land stood derelict becoming an eyesore 
on the popular Water of Leith Walkway.

Overcoming the inevitable challenges 
of this contaminated brownfield site, 
CALA designed Kinleith Mill in Currie to 
accommodate a selection of bespoke  
3 bedroom townhouses, 4 & 5 bedroom 
detached properties, apartments and 
Golden Share homes, all mimicking 
the industrial characteristics of the past 
and reflecting the former large mill-style 
buildings that once sat there.

Improved access to the Water of Leith 
Walkway and its surroundings has  
been provided:

•  A new double-width bridge provides 
vehicle access from the main road 
into Edinburgh city centre

•  A new junction and safety crossing on 
one of Edinburgh’s main  
arterial routes

The site’s impressive finish transformed 
the brownfield site, reconnecting it with 
its residential surroundings.

CASE STUDY
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WE AIM TO ATTRACT AND RETAIN EXCELLENT PEOPLE BY CREATING 
THE RIGHT ENVIRONMENT TO MAXIMISE INDIVIDUAL ACHIEVEMENT; 
ONE THAT PROVIDES ALL EMPLOYEES WITH EQUAL SUPPORT AND 
OPPORTUNITY AND EMBRACES DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION.

OUR PEOPLE

OUR LAND AND PLANNING

LANDBANK PLOTS GDV ASP LAND COST YEARS

CONSENTED 11,393 £4,333M £380K 21.4% 6.0

ALLOCATED 1,514 £552M £365K 19.5% 0.7

DRAFT ALLOCATION OR NO PLANNING STATUS 2,929 £1,007M £344K 21.8% 1.4

OWNED / CONTRACTED 15,836 £5,892M £372K 21.3% 8.1

STRATEGIC 11,830 £3,617M £306K 16.9%

TOTAL AT 30 JUNE 2017 27,666 £9,509M £344K 19.6%  

TOTAL AT 30 JUNE 2016 26,622 £8,816M £331K 19.6%  

We are being forced to resort more 

frequently to the lengthy and costly appeal 

process, which is disappointing, especially 

where the principle of housing development 

has already been accepted through a 

local development or neighbourhood plan 

allocation, or the grant of outline planning 

permission. It is currently difficult to see a 

practical resolution to these issues being 

implemented anytime soon to support the 

vital role of the planning system in the 

delivery of the new homes needed.

During the year to 30 June 2017, our 

land teams have contracted 34 new sites, 

carefully selected to match the aspirations 

of our customers and projected to deliver 

3,199 homes with a GDV of £1.25 billion 

and an average selling price including 

affordable housing of £391,000  

(2016: 2,683 homes, GDV £1 billion).  

This represents a replacement rate of  

1.7 times group housing turnover, with  

76% located in our principal growth area  

of the south east of England and 

underpinning our expansion potential.

Despite the unpredictable planning 

environment in which we operate, our 

proactive and efficient planning teams have 

worked hard to achieve, largely through 

negotiated planning permissions granted 

locally, another very successful year of 

delivery. During the 12 months to 30 June 

2017, we acquired land with a planning 

permission or secured a first-time planning 

permission on 33 sites for 3,156 homes 

with an estimated GDV of £1.2 billion at 

an average selling price of £376,000, 

including affordable housing (2016: 3,078 

homes with a GDV of £1 billion). 49% 

of sales completions during the financial 

year were either pulled through from our 

strategic landbank or converted from 

conditional contracts on a ‘subject-to-

planning’ basis.

The group’s owned and contracted short 

term landbank at 30 June 2017 comprises 

15,836 plots (private and affordable 

homes), the scope and planning status 

of which are summarised below (2016: 

15,399 plots). There is no incentive to hold 

land back once the necessary permissions 

are in place, so CALA continues to meet 

its commitment to commence development 

on all sites in the landbank, where both 

the required approvals are in place and 

contractual terms on site purchase are 

agreed. The sites in the landbank at 30 

June 2017 have a combined GDV of 

approximately £5.9 billion, measured at 

today’s selling prices, with an ASP including 

affordable housing of £372,000. This 

represents 8.1 years’ development potential 

based on 2017 housing revenue, although 

this will be used more quickly as the 

group’s growth plans are realised.

The group also controls a high quality 

longer-term strategic landbank comprising 

11,830 plots (2016: 11,223), mostly held 

under option, to be promoted through 

the planning system to meet future 

development needs. Our success in this 

regard means that a large number of 

these sites have the prospect of gaining or 

enhancing their development plan status 

in the short-term, with others reviewed 

regularly and to be promoted at the 

appropriate time. During the year, 103 

plots from the strategic landbank secured  

a planning status for the first time and eight 

new strategic sites were contracted, for 

1,097 plots.

*All figures include private and affordable

LAND CONTRACTED DURING 2017 2016 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR*

Sites 34 30

Plots 3,199 2,683

Consented (by plots) 50% 50%

Average site size 94 plots 89 plots

GDV £1,250m £1,000m

ASP £391k £373k

England:Scotland (by value) 76%:24% 57%:43%

Strategic plots 1,097 342

 

*All figures include private and affordable

LAND CONSENTED DURING 2017 2016 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR*

Sites 33 34

Plots 3,156 3,078

From strategic landbank  
(by plots) 28% 42%

Average site size 96 plots 91 plots

GDV £1,186m £1,035m

ASP £376k £336k
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I joined CALA’s Graduate Programme in 
2016 with the view of being able to work 
with something I am passionate about 
– engineering and architecture. The year- 
long programme places each graduate 
in a regional office to gain hands-on 
experience and responsibility, with training 
meet-ups every month covering the 
business and interpersonal skills.

The combination of these elements has 
allowed me to gain a good understanding 

of the construction industry and how 
everyone interacts with each other, as well 
as in-depth knowledge of my engineering 
role. Most recently, I have completed 
experience days within each department, 
which have really strengthened my 
understanding of the industry.

For me, the people make CALA – they are 
passionate about what they do and what 
they create. I can certainly see my future 
career thriving here.

CASE STUDY

OUR PEOPLE STRATEGIC REPORT

SOME OF THE 2016/17 CALA GRADUATES

Performing competitively in the current 

housing market environment requires the 

commitment and effective engagement of 

our employees, motivated and inspired to 

deliver outstanding results for the CALA 

brand. Our talented people excel in their 

achievements by working safely together 

across the business in a supportive and 

encouraging environment and rewarded 

with a satisfying work life in a successful, 

growing company.

At 30 June 2017 we had 936 employees 

within the group (2016: 810), a further 

significant increase over the previous 

year. As a consequence of CALA’s speed 

of growth, the approach to managing 

and developing our workforce takes on 

a different complexion with a greater 

emphasis on our drive to recruit, retain  

and enable the team we need to deliver  

our ambitious growth strategy.

CULTURE

We aim to attract and retain excellent 

people by creating the right environment to 

maximise individual achievement; one that 

provides all employees with equal support 

and opportunity and embraces diversity  

and inclusion.

Our culture is defined simply by the four 

foundation values we expect to see in our 

people – Passion, Quality, Respect and 

Delivery. Our culture is a key ingredient in 

our ability to live up to the vision we have 

for our employees and for the business to 

deliver to its potential. We encourage our 

employees to make a difference, pushing 

responsibility and decision-making further 

down the organisation in an open and 

supportive environment.

ENGAGING WITH  
OUR EMPLOYEES

We believe it is essential to engage and 

communicate effectively with our staff and 

to that end we provide regular updates 

on operational developments, corporate 

responsibility initiatives and the financial 

performance of the group, using e-mail 

and our intranet.

Regular staff briefings are hosted at our 

regional and head offices and periodically 

we hold a Directors’ Conference with the 

purpose of aligning the goals of the senior 

leaders across the business. In addition, 

we bring all our employees together 

for an annual briefing, hosted in both 

England and Scotland. These are extremely 

important and popular events for our staff 

that provide an opportunity for them to 

hear about the group’s plans and vision for 

the future. 

ANNA PATERSON TECHNICAL GRADUATE
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FOR THE TEAM AT CALA THE CREATION OF EACH NEW 
HOME AND EVERY NEW DEVELOPMENT IS AN OPPORTUNITY 
TO REALISE OUR VISION OF DESIGN EXCELLENCE. 

OUR HOMES

KINLEITH MILL, CURRIE, EDINBURGH

OUR PEOPLE

It is also an opportunity for staff to put 

questions to the senior management team 

via an open Q&A forum.

We are very mindful of the challenge we 

face in a fast growing business to retain  

the culture we value so highly and this  

year we carried out our second group- 

wide externally facilitated employee  

effectiveness survey to gain valuable  

insight into how our staff feel about 

working at CALA. Benchmarked against 

other high-performing companies, the 

results have been overwhelmingly positive 

with overall scores for the key measures of 

‘Enablement’ at 79% (Last survey: 72%)  

and ‘Engagement’ at 77% (Last survey: 

70%). The results are very encouraging 

and will be followed up with a number of 

regional and team briefings to develop 

action plans for areas of opportunity that 

will help us improve capability and the 

underlying strength of the business.

DEVELOPING TALENT

In keeping with CALA’s desire to invest 

in new talent for the future, we have 

recently completed the selection process 

for our third graduate development 

programme. Seven bright and ambitious 

young people will shortly start work in our 

regional businesses across a number of 

key disciplines and will be joined on the 

programme by three recent graduates 

already working with CALA. They will 

enjoy a structured 12-month development 

programme, including a rotational element 

in a related discipline to broaden their 

thinking and experience before going on to 

complete further professional qualifications 

and contributing actively in the workplace.

We have a number of students working with 

our teams as part of their university courses 

in a placement capacity and we continue 

to work with local schools to help young 

people gain work experience. We have also 

created a number of trainee roles in our 

Commercial and Construction functions, 

to attract new recruits into the industry 

and encourage employees to progress in 

these areas whilst supporting them through 

further education.

During the year, as part of our corporate 

partnership with The Prince’s Trust and our 

commitment to address the skills shortage 

faced by the industry, CALA has worked 

in conjunction with the City of Glasgow 

College and the Trust to deliver a further 

‘Get Into Construction’ programme. The 

programme caters for disadvantaged 

young people who are not in education, 

employment or training and offers them 

essential skills training and a work 

placement on a CALA site, after which 

they have the opportunity to be supported 

through a Modern Apprenticeship.

INVESTING IN OUR PEOPLE

This year, the HR Learning & Development 

team has increased the number of training 

days delivered across the company by 

91%. We have significantly increased our 

e-learning provision and doubled our 

investment in supporting our staff through 

further and higher education qualifications. 

We have also played an active role with the 

Home Building Skills Partnership to recruit 

new people into the industry and address 

the national skills shortage.

We place huge importance on the 

induction of our new staff, ensuring they 

are equipped to deliver for CALA at the 

outset and continue to invest heavily in 

this area. We have our own dedicated 

Sales Trainer for the first time and have 

introduced an induction programme aimed 

specifically at new managers. We have also 

put in place an ‘Essentials’ programme 

specifically to provide new and existing line 

managers with core skills to enable them 

to become confident and effective in their 

people-management responsibilities. We 

have supported a number of cohorts of 

middle managers through our Leadership 

Development Programme to ensure our 

management population leads in a way 

that is aligned to our values.

INCLUSION AND  
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

We provide equal opportunities in 

recruitment, career development, 

promotion, training and rewards for all 

employees, including those with disabilities. 

Where possible, we make reasonable 

adjustments in job design and provide 

appropriate training for employees who 

have become disabled.

CALA HOMES WEST TEAM WITH PRINCE’S TRUST APPRENTICES
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This year, we have launched the  
‘Light & Space’ collection at our  
first development in Scotland.

Castle Bay, in Dunbar, East Lothian 
consists of 90 four and five bedroom 
family homes from the new collection, 
and is ideally located for semi-rural 
living with an efficient commute  
to Edinburgh.

The ‘Light & Space’ collection is a 
thoughtfully designed range of homes 
with both character and practicality. 
Careful consideration has been given 
to the configuration of the homes to 
maximise and enhance our buyers’ 
modern way of life. Charming exteriors 
coupled with impactful, flexible family 
living spaces epitomise the ‘Light & 
Space’ collection. The homes have the 
ability to respond to the local context 
with a choice of different elevation and 
material finishes. 

Early sales success at Castle Bay 
indicates that the ‘Light & Space’ 
collection is already proving popular 
among our audience in Scotland. 

CASE STUDY

OUR HOMES STRATEGIC REPORT

CASTLE BAY, DUNBAR, EAST LOTHIAN

At CALA, we make every effort to work 

collaboratively with local communities, 

interest groups and Local Authorities at 

the earliest possible stage of the planning 

process and are often commended for our 

inclusive approach. We believe strongly 

in the benefit this brings to facilitating a 

better understanding and greater support 

for our development plans, and for us 

to appreciate fully the things that matter 

most to local people. Integral to this is our 

approach to design.

For the team at CALA the creation of each 

new home and every new development 

is an opportunity to realise our vision of 

design excellence. This ethos translates 

into carefully considered master plans, 

through elegant home exteriors designed 

to complement their surroundings, to 

professionally crafted and expertly detailed 

interiors. To achieve this, we work with 

talented in-house or external designers, 

working closely with local planners and 

communities, to develop architectural 

solutions that demonstrate impact and 

integrity. Each CALA project follows a 

carefully considered brief, reflecting the 

influence of the local environment, market 

research and community consultation. 

Appropriate materials are used for each 

location and our homes are detailed to 

respect the local vernacular.

We are now using our ‘Light & Space’ 

range of preferred house types across 

all eight operating regions to ease the 

process of design and enable us to scale-

up delivery of the CALA product. The use 

of preferred house types enables CALA to 

benefit from continuous improvement, to 

repeat details that are successful and to 

eliminate design compromises. We evolve 

and adapt the house type range to reflect 

the changing socio-economic environment, 

statutory requirements and market trends. 

‘Light & Space’ is now beginning to 

deliver homes across the group that are 

more highly engineered, through their 

repetition, and which have been inspired 

and crafted from a credible design ethos. 

When a proposed development requires 

an entirely bespoke design approach, our 

Design Code sets out the criteria to ensure 

the essence of CALA design, which has 

fed into the ‘Light & Space’ range, is also 

acknowledged and encapsulated in any 

bespoke house types we build.

The design of each project recognises 

CALA’s desire to create communities and 

homes, keeping customers’ lifestyles at 

the forefront of our minds, whether it is 

demonstrating an understanding of modern 

family life or the needs of trading down 

buyers. A key focus for the year ahead 

is to develop the demographic tools and 

skills in our regional teams to enhance 

this targeting of the CALA marketplace. 

OAKWOOD GATE, BAMPTON, OXFORDSHIRE
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OUR AIM IS ALWAYS TO CREATE ATTRACTIVE NEW PLACES THAT 
ACCENTUATE THE POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES OF THE LOCAL ENVIRONMENT.

OUR SUSTAINABLE WAY
We build aspirational homes and seek to 

identify buyers prepared to pay a premium 

for a product that is better specified and 

better built than the immediate competition.

All new CALA sites are compliant with 

the group’s standard specification which 

provides a palate of approved suppliers 

and product models at different price  

levels. The group specification allows  

CALA to engineer its product and maximise 

its buying power with selected suppliers. 

The economies of scale as CALA grows  

and procures in unison, bring significant 

cost reductions and importantly cost  

stability through longer-term, stronger 

relationships with suppliers and 

manufacturers. We plan to extend our 

centralised procurement activity further in 

the year ahead to encompass a greater 

number of products and suppliers and 

generate further value for the group.

Construction quality remains a key industry 

focus and CALA has worked ahead of the 

pack to reinforce the drive to deliver homes 

finished to the highest industry standards. 

Simple but effective processes to check 

build quality and improve construction 

standards are more visible and evermore 

prevalent in the business. Support from 

the NHBC through its new initiative 

‘Construction Quality Reviews’ gives each 

CALA region an annual snapshot of its 

standards and provides the group with 

the opportunity to cross-fertilise the best 

achievements between regions whilst 

providing tried and tested solutions  

to identified opportunities for improvement.  

As a testament to the group’s  

determination to embrace initiatives to 

improve construction standards, a number 

of CALA’s best site managers have been 

recognised with a prestigious Pride in the 

Job award from the NHBC.

OUR HOMES

COTON HOUSE, RUGBY, WARWICKSHIRE

PORTESBERY SQUARE, CAMBERLEY, SURREY  
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HADLEY MANOR, HADLEY WOOD, HERTFORDSHIRE

OUR SUSTAINABLE WAY STRATEGIC REPORT

CALA is a responsible homebuilder, 

committed to the principle of delivering 

sustainable developments borne out of a 

design-led consultative approach that is 

genuine. We have a strong desire to have 

a positive, lasting impact on everything 

we do, which ensures we leave a valuable 

legacy. Our aim is always to create 

attractive new places that accentuate  

the positive attributes of the local 

environment and can be enjoyed by the 

local community not just in the present,  

but in the years to come.

We are recent members of NextGeneration, 

a benchmark consisting of many of the 

UK’s largest homebuilders and overseen 

by the UK Green Building Council and 

the Homes and Communities Agency. 

Our 2016 sustainability credentials, as 

measured by NextGeneration’s Annual 

Sustainability Benchmark, ranked CALA 

above the industry average for the first time 

with a score of 45% (2015: 36%). We use 

the detailed results to assess our progress 

and to stimulate an improved performance, 

which is especially important given the 

growth of our business.

COMMUNITY

At CALA we aim to build not just homes 

but communities. An integral part of this is 

contributing to the causes and charities that 

are important to local people. This year we 

have run a number of initiatives to increase 

the number of charities, groups and 

individuals we are able to help. We also 

help our employees to support the causes 

that are important to them through our 

Give As You Earn and fundraising matching 

schemes, which have both seen a strong 

increase in take up this year.

Having launched our first bursary scheme 

in Aberdeen in 2015, this year we have 

successfully rolled the programme out 

across the group. Across our eight 

regions we opened 13 schemes with total 

funds available of over £100,000. Each 

region has created a committee to review 

applications and select beneficiaries. 

2017 AT A GLANCE

56% OF HOMES CONSTRUCTED ON BROWNFIELD SITES

355 NEW AFFORDABLE HOMES DELIVERED

FUNDRAISING AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS OF £166,098

98% OF CONSTRUCTION WASTE RECYCLED

Helping people in the communities 

where we build is one of our key 

sustainability drivers, which is why 

following the success of the Bursary 

Scheme in the North of Scotland  

it made absolute sense to extend  

the opportunity across all of our  

eight regions. 

This has also been a great way to 

involve our employees. Each region 

created a Community Bursary Board 

to run the scheme and make funding 

decisions in their area, helping us 

to better understand the issues and 

challenges in local areas, and giving 

us the ability to help.

CASE STUDY

CALA HOMES COMMUNITY BURSARY LAUNCH
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OUR SUSTAINABLE WAY

We expect around 90 groups and charities 

in the communities where we build to 

receive funding this year.

This has been the second year of our 

relationship with The Prince’s Trust and 

as well as continuing with the ‘Get Into 

Construction’ programmes we have started 

to introduce volunteering opportunities 

for employees. This has included CV 

and interview skills workshops and 

introductions to the construction workplace 

as an important part of young people’s 

preparation to become work ready. CALA 

employees have embraced the charity, 

raising over £50,000 this year undertaking 

personal contests such as the Three Peaks 

Challenge, the Palace to Palace bike ride 

and the Centurion Challenge alongside a 

number of other fundraising events.

This year we have also supported young 

gardeners during National Gardening 

Week. In total CALA provided 33 schools 

with a donation of gardening tools 

including trowels, rakes, watering cans  

and gloves; the schools also received  

an insect sculpture hotel and wildlife-

attracting-seeds to encourage wildlife into 

the school gardens.

ENVIRONMENT

CALA’s environmental management 

system provides the framework to ensure 

we comply with environmental laws and 

minimise the environmental impact of our 

development proposals and supply chain 

through comprehensive evaluation at the 

design stage of our projects.

The improvements made last year to our 

group procurement activity have seen us 

make significant cost savings and increased 

our ability to ensure chain of custody 

evidence. As part of this policy we are 

committed to purchasing timber products 

sourced from sustainably managed forests 

with FSC certification for 97%.

Despite the premium nature of our 

developments, each year the majority of 

our homes are built on brownfield land. 

During the 12 months to 30 June 2017 

we completed the sale of 934 homes 

on brownfield land representing 56% of 

all legal completions in the year (2016: 

626 homes and 54%). This often involves 

bringing back into use, areas of public 

land and green open space that requires a 

carefully planned technical solution to deal 

with complex remediation, demolition and 

engineering works to prepare the ground 

for development.

Waste recycling of building materials 

from sites is another important part of our 

sustainability programme. During the 12 

months to 30 June 2017, 98% of waste 

was recycled from our sites (2016: 97%). 

The total amount of waste sent to landfill 

reduced by 10% to 544 tonnes (2016: 602 

tonnes), despite the significant increase in 

our development activity.

Our approach to design and construction 

is ‘fabric first’; we aim to deliver energy 

efficient living with a focus on the thermal 

performance of our homes. We incorporate 

renewable technologies whilst trying to 

minimise complexity for our customers. 

Renewable energy components including 

solar PV, solar thermal, air source heating 

and shower save were incorporated into the 

construction of 462 home sales completed 

to 30 June 2017 (2016: 303).

Further information on our community  

and environmental policies can be  

found in our Sustainability Report, 

published annually on our website at  

www.cala.co.uk/sustainability.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The health and safety of our employees, 

subcontractors and customers is always 

the first concern of the board, and we are 

committed to ensuring that everyone who 

visits our sites and offices is able to carry 

out their duties safely. All health and safety 

issues, including matters arising from on-

site inspections, are reported to the board 

for consideration on a regular basis.

The group operates a comprehensive 

health and safety management system, 

which includes monitoring, staff training 

and management reporting. Frequent on-

site inspections are carried out by our own 

qualified staff, targeting significant hazards 

and incident trends, as well as providing 

the opportunity to review future works. 

The health and safety team also carry out 

additional coaching and mentoring visits 

which are intended to address knowledge 

and skills gaps and ensure that our site-

based employees have a thorough and 

practical understanding of our health and 

safety requirements.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achieving zero Reporting of Injuries, 

Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 

Regulations (‘RIDDOR’) injuries is our 

immediate goal, whilst our ultimate 

challenge is to establish a culture where 

people work safely, looking out for one 

another, so that no one suffers injury or ill 

health as a result of our activities. CALA’s 

Annual Injury Incidence Rate (‘AIIR’) for the 

year to 31 March 2017 reduced to 536 

incidents per 100,000 employees (2016: 

583) despite a slight increase in the number 

of injuries reportable under RIDDOR from 

16 to 18, albeit from greater site activity. 

Nonetheless, the board is satisfied with  

the group’s health and safety approach  

and the measures being introduced to 

reduce risk and the number of accidents in 

future years.

Disappointingly, eleven specified injuries 

(major accidents) were reported during the 

year to 30 June 2017 (2016: four) although 

fortunately none very serious in nature. 

There were no fatalities during the year 

(2016: nil).

Our commitment to maintaining the 

highest standards of health and safety is 

reinforced by the investment we make in 

ensuring our own staff and subcontractors 

are fully aware of their responsibilities and 

that they have the resources, knowledge 

and capability to carry out their roles 

safely. In the 12 months to 30 June 2017, 

the number of health and safety training 

days delivered increased by 27% to 1,220 

(2016: 959). These statistics only include 

training lasting more than three hours 

and exclude inductions. All operational 

directors have received training to allow 

them to carry out specific health and 

safety tours which are a key element of 

our future behavioural programme and 

allow our regional leaders to engage with 

our site-based teams and contractors to 

demonstrate the importance that we place 

on health and safety.

During the year there were no HSE 

Enforcement Notices issued to our sites 

for non-compliance with health and safety 

legislation (2016: one).

The day-to-day management of all health 

and safety activities is conducted by our 

Director of Health and Safety. Graham Reid 

is the main board director responsible for 

health and safety throughout the group.

PRINCE’S TRUST ‘GET INTO CONSTRUCTION’

PRINCE’S TRUST ‘WORLD OF WORK’ TOUR
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2017 has been a hugely significant 12 

months for CALA and a very successful 

year for the team. We have made excellent 

progress towards achieving our growth 

ambitions and remain firmly on track to 

deliver annual revenue of around £1 billion 

by 2020. Our growth journey (illustrated 

in the chart below) commenced in 2013 

following the acquisition of CALA by Patron 

Capital and Legal & General, and with their 

investment and ongoing support we expect 

to deliver on our strategic plan within the 

next three years.

The significant volume growth in the year 

has driven a fifth successive year of record 

profits. We increased the number of homes 

sold by 46% to 1,677 (2016: 1,151) which 

has resulted in a record turnover of £747.9 

million, up 27% compared with last year.

Whilst I am very pleased with the progress 

made in delivering more homes and 

expanding the platform and capability of 

the business, we have encountered a few 

notable challenges during the year which 

have held back our financial results or 

compromised our operational performance.

Providing first-class customer service and a 

quality product are key priorities for CALA 

and defines how we run our business. 

During the year, albeit by a small margin, 

we were unable to retain the maximum 

5-star rating in the HBF National New 

Home Customer Satisfaction Survey that 

we have held for each of the last seven 

years. It is disappointing to have fallen 

short of our very high standards in this 

way and we have since implemented 

some key procedural changes as well as 

increasing our training investment to ensure 

that we deliver the quality of product and 

service that all of our purchasers deserve. 

These changes have already resulted in a 

significant improvement to our customer 

service scores and at the time of writing 

we are once again leading the benchmark 

group and on track to regain the 5-star 

rating for the year to 30 September 2017.

MARKET REVIEW

The UK economy has been resilient  

during the year with growth, albeit below 

trend, remaining relatively strong  

despite the significant uncertainty in the 

months following the Brexit vote last 

June. Most economic indicators have 

been positive under the circumstances, 

particularly in connection with the 

employment market and this echoes the 

global economy with key policy makers 

generally leaning towards curbing 

inflationary pressures rather than any  

need to inject further stimulus.

This benign economic backdrop has been 

supportive for the wider UK housing market 

“2017 HAS BEEN A HUGELY 
SIGNIFICANT 12 MONTHS FOR  
CALA AND A VERY SUCCESSFUL 
YEAR FOR THE TEAM. ” 

ALAN D. BROWN 
Chief Executive

STRATEGIC REPORT

which has also been characterised by good 

access to low-cost mortgage finance and 

the ever-present structural demand and 

supply imbalance. The UK general election 

in June this year has had little or no impact 

on housing market momentum despite the 

unexpected outcome.

Combined, these factors have resulted in 

strong demand for new homes during the 

last 12 months with high transaction levels 

further supported by the Government’s 

Help to Buy equity loan scheme. Whilst 

heavily used by the majority of national 

homebuilders, some of whom are more 

than 50% dependent on such support,  

Help to Buy has limited direct impact on 

CALA due to our market positioning with 

just 14% of our private completions in  

2017 using the scheme (2016: 12%).   

The Government has recently embarked 

on a review to consider the future of 

Help to Buy which could result in reform 

or replacement of the scheme before its 

scheduled end in April 2021. We are of the 

opinion that the Government should close 

the scheme post 2021 and provide early 

visibility of any transitional arrangements 

for doing so. Any changes are unlikely to 

have a significant direct impact on our 

business given CALA’s limited exposure 

to Help to Buy and the financial resilience 

of our customer base, although we are 

mindful how any reform might affect the 

new build housing market as a whole.

The rise in UK house prices has eased 

markedly during the year with average 

prices increasing in a range from 2 – 5% 

during the 12 months to 30 June 2017 

depending on which of the recognised 

indices are used. The moderation in house 

price growth to current levels is helpful for 

purchaser affordability, which is already 

stretched and is a welcome trend for the 

long-term health of the housing market. 

Our own experience has been consistent 

with this on most of our developments,  

but as was the case last year, there have 

been some exceptions within our markets.

Our North region based in Aberdeen 

has seen positive signs of stability in the 

local housing market with sales prices 

broadly flat during the year across our 

developments. Whilst the outlook is 

more optimistic and we have taken the 

opportunity to invest in new land, the  

legacy of the downturn in the Aberdeen 

market continues to have a modest 

detrimental impact on the group’s  

house sales gross margin; albeit our  

North region represented only 6% of 

revenue in the financial year.

The health of the housing market at the top 

end, particularly for homes priced above 

£1 million, is much more problematic with 

weak transaction levels and falling prices.  

It is clear that this segment of the market 

is operating dysfunctionally, driven by the 

highly penal cost of SDLT in England and 

LBTT in Scotland which ratchets up too 

steeply at high price points. Reflecting a 

strategy change implemented some years 

ago to scale up CALA’s operations, we are 

continuing to rebalance our development 

portfolio away from this end of the market.  

Only 4% of private homes sold and 10% 

by value were over £1 million in 2017 

(2016: 5% and 16% respectively), with 

this continuing to reduce in future years.  

Nonetheless, the legacy impact of our 

activity at high price points has also had a 

negative effect on margin.

2017 has been a busy year in the 

residential land market for our teams and 

we have secured a number of excellent 

new development sites. In the months 

immediately following the EU referendum 

last year, uncertainty in the land market 

presented a number of good buying 

opportunities. In contrast, during the 

remainder of the financial year the market 

has become progressively more competitive 

as Brexit-related market concerns abated, 

although the land market still remains 

relatively benign by historic standards.

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY

During the financial year to 30 June 2017, 

the group increased its average number of 

active selling sites per week to 48 (2016: 

45) despite the total number of sites from 

which private sales completions were 

secured being broadly similar to last year 

at 81 (2016: 80). We closed 34 sites during 

the 12-month period and delivered the first 

sales completions on 33 new sites across 

our regions.

The average size of site in operation has 

continued to increase as we transition to 

larger developments with selling prices 

that are more centred around the group 

average. During the year we increased our 

construction starts, commencing build on 

35 new sites which will ultimately deliver 

around 2,000 private homes at an average 

size of 57 private homes per development 

(2016: 31 new sites with an average of 54 

private homes).

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

ROSEFIELD GARDENS, CULTS, ABERDEEN
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Our sales performance during the year has 

been excellent with net private reservations 

up 26% on 2016 at an average selling 

price of £482,000 (2016: £536,000). 

The ASP is lower than the previous year 

and reflects a change in both product 

and site mix, including an increase in the 

proportion of apartments sold. The group 

achieved a 17% increase in the net private 

reservation rate to 0.56 average weekly 

sales per development (2016: 0.48) even 

with minimal support from Help to Buy 

and the aforementioned challenges at the 

top end of the market. This equates to a 

strong rise in our sector-leading average 

weekly private revenue per development to 

£271,000 (2016: £254,000), which is a 

far more meaningful metric of CALA’s sales 

performance given the size of the group’s 

ASP relative to that of its larger peers. The 

cancellation rate was similar to last year at 

17% (2016: 17%).

At 1 July 2017 we had accumulated 382 

advance private home sales with a turnover 

value of £178.7 million (2016: 303 private 

homes and £160.0 million) for delivery 

by 30 June 2018, an increase of 26% by 

volume and 12% by value compared with 

the prior year. This equates to a sales carry 

forward of 29% (2016: 30%) based on the 

number of private sales completions during 

the current financial year.

CURRENT TRADING  
AND OUTLOOK

The housing market has performed well 

during the summer, with no apparent 

adverse consequences from the UK general 

election in June. CALA’s trading in the 

first few months of the new financial year 

has been encouraging with reservations 

and prices in line with our budgets and 

expectation for the summer holiday period. 

In the first 10 weeks of 2017/18 we have 

traded at a rate of 0.60 weekly sales per 

development, with net private reservations 

up 34% on the same period last year.

We have delivered a very good set 

of financial results and have made 

considerable progress towards our 

strategic growth targets. However, of equal 

importance has been the improvement in 

the strength of the underlying business. 

New operating initiatives have become 

embedded and more training and 

recruitment has reinforced our core values 

and enhanced the capability of our teams. 

When combined with a premium brand, 

strong landbank and a rapidly growing 

presence in our key operating areas,  

all of these qualities highlight CALA’s 

significant potential.

Realising this potential requires good 

execution of our business plan and dealing 

effectively with any external factors that 

may affect our marketplace. The most 

significant prevailing exposure relates to 

the market and political risks that surround 

the challenging process of negotiating the 

terms of the UK’s withdrawal from the EU, 

although the market has proven resilient to 

this uncertainty up until now. Nonetheless, 

I am confident that CALA is in a strong 

position to deal with any adverse change 

in the market should this materialise in 

the year ahead given the strength of our 

balance sheet, our funding capacity and the 

flexibility of our landbank.

Finally, I would like to thank our fantastic 

employees for their vital contribution to 

what has been another year of considerable 

progress for CALA. We have a loyal and 

committed team in place that has worked 

exceptionally hard during the year to 

achieve our goals and position the group 

for further success. We are, as always, 

very appreciative of the support provided 

by our business partners and in particular, 

our major shareholders, Patron Capital 

and Legal & General who remain great 

advocates of the business.

CALA is a great company, in excellent 

shape and I am very excited about what we 

can deliver in the years ahead.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

VIRGINIA GATE, ENGLEFIELD GREEN, SURREY

CHARTERS GATE, WIVELSFIELD GREEN, EAST SUSSEX
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not been sufficient to maintain the housing 

gross margin at last year’s level.

In line with the reduction in the housing 

gross margin the group has experienced 

a reduction in operating margin to 12.4% 

(2016: 14.3%). The ratio of net operating 

expenses to revenue has remained broadly 

consistent at 6.9% (2016: 6.8%). These 

indicators are a reflection of the early 

installation of a workforce capable of 

delivering the future growth targets of the 

group. As the new members of our team 

become conversant with the CALA way 

of working and our business efficiency 

initiatives are scaled up, both operating 

margin and the ratio of net operating 

expenses to revenue will improve in  

future years.

Return on capital employed (‘ROCE’) 

remains one of our key financial 

performance measures. Despite strong 

financial results in 2017, ROCE remained 

at 18.6% (2016: 18.6%) and although a 

record performance, it still lies slightly below 

our stated target of 20%. This is mainly 

due to the combination of a lower house 

sales gross margin and the higher carrying 

investment in new sites delivering in future 

years as we transition to a much larger 

business. Nonetheless, CALA operates 

a capital-efficient business model and 

combined with the expected improvements 

in operating margin, ROCE is expected to 

exceed our target in the short term.

BALANCE SHEET

Land and work in progress, net of land 

creditors, has risen from £571.8 million 

in 2016 to £626.0 million, due to the 

increased investment in new developments 

for CALA’s expansion plans. We continue to 

use land creditors to assist with the funding 

of larger land acquisitions and where it is 

value-enhancing for the business. Land 

creditors at 30 June 2017 have increased 

to £216.7 million (2016: £136.2 million), 

with the group taking advantage of deferred 

payment structures generally available in 

the current land market.

Inventories include part exchange properties 

with a combined net expected resale value 

of £25.9 million (2016: £41.6 million). 

This is a significant decrease since last year, 

reflecting the nature of the homes sold in 

the latter part of the financial year following 

our planned move away from the top end of 

the market. At 30 June 2017, part exchange 

properties with an inventory value of £20.0 

million were already reserved for onward 

sale and at 31 August 2017 £21.2 million 

of the part exchange inventory at the year 

end had either been sold or is reserved  

for sale.

The carrying value of the group’s  

intangible assets includes the value of the 

CALA brand in Scotland, which remains 

unchanged since last year at £8.6m. The 

CALA brand is considered to have an 

indefinite life and is tested for impairment 

on an annual basis. The remaining 

intangible asset is the goodwill arising on 

the acquisition of Banner, which has an 

unchanged balance sheet value of £40.1 

million. The goodwill is also tested for 

impairment on an annual basis.

At 30 June 2017, the group held available 

for sale financial assets, being shared 

equity debtors relating to 80 homes with 

an estimated net recoverable value of £2.0 

million (2016: 89 homes and £2.3 million 

respectively). The value of shared equity 

debtors has reduced during the year due 

to loan redemptions by our home owners, 

partially offset by the annual unwind of 

the fair value discount as the portfolio 

progresses a further year towards maturity.

Net assets of the group increased by 18% 

during the year to an all-time high of 

£338.6 million (2016: £286.1 million) 

driven by retained profits.

NET ASSETS

2016
£286.1m

2015
£243.4m

2017
£338.6m

INVENTORIES 2017 2016

 £m £m

Land and options 595.7 485.0

Less: Land creditors (216.7) (136.2)

Net Land and options 379.0 348.8

Part exchange 25.9 41.6

WIP and other stock 221.1 181.4

NET INVENTORY  626.0 571.8

J. GRAHAM G. REID 
Group Finance Director

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
REVIEW

TRADING

This year CALA has once again traded 

strongly, generating record results for a 

fifth successive year. The group delivered a 

record profit before tax, revaluations and 

exceptional items of £68.5million (2016: 

£60.1 million) on revenue of £747.9 

million (2016: £587.1 million). The year-

on-year profit and revenue increases of 

14% and 27% respectively are entirely due 

to the greater number of homes sold in the 

year, which is offset by a reduction in the  

average private selling price in line with  

the group’s strategy.

Revaluations and exceptional items before 

tax were a credit of £1.9 million for the 

financial year, representing a decrease in 

the fair value liability of the group’s interest 

rate swaps. In 2016, revaluations and 

exceptional items before tax were a net 

adverse £2.1 million. This was made up of 

a decrease in the fair value of the group’s 

interest rate swaps of £2.5 million offset by 

a £0.4 million reduction to previous year’s 

exceptional bad debt provision.

CALA Group completed the sale of 1,677 

homes during the 12 months to 30 June 

2017 (2016: 1,151). The increase in the 

number of home completions was achieved 

from a similar number of sites at 81 (2016: 

80), albeit the sites are larger on average 

than last year. The number of private 

homes completed increased by 33% to 

1,322 (2016: 1,002) but were delivered 

at a lower ASP, decreasing to £497,000 

(2016: £538,000) due mainly to a change 

in site mix. The delivery of affordable 

homes more than doubled to 355 (2016: 

149), comprising discounted market value 

homes to qualifying purchasers and homes 

delivered to housing associations.

Our housing gross margin has seen further 

erosion compared with last year, easing 

back to 20.0% (2016: 21.8%). Several 

factors have contributed to the fall, most 

notably the lower incomes incurred in the 

first half of the year across a selection of 

sites at the top end of the market with sales 

prices in excess of £1 million. Most of these 

sites are now complete and margins have 

subsequently been improving as a result.  

In addition, our revenue mix in the year 

has changed to include a higher proportion 

of affordable housing income at lower 

margins. Sales price gains during the year 

on other sites, net of cost inflation, have 

HIGH PEAK, SUNNINGDALE, BERKSHIRE

ROSEGARTH WYND, NEWTON MEARNS, GLASGOW

REVENUE 2017 2016

 £m £m

Private housing 649.9 538.3

Affordable housing 73.3 42.9

Land sales 24.7 5.9

GROUP REVENUE 747.9 587.1

“THE GROUP DELIVERED A  
RECORD PROFIT BEFORE TAX, 
REVALUATIONS AND EXCEPTIONAL 
ITEMS OF £68.5 MILLION.” 
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FINANCING AND CASH FLOW

At the year end, the group had in place 

committed senior debt facilities of £300 

million which expire in March 2019. These 

comprised an amortising term loan with 

a remaining balance of £100 million and 

a revolving credit facility of £200 million. 

The debt funding is provided by a syndicate 

of six banks led by Bank of Scotland and 

including Santander and HSBC.

At 30 June 2017, the group had net debt 

of £214.2 million (2016: £248.7 million) 

which consisted of net bank debt of 

£78.4 million (2016: £123.9 million) and 

unsecured redeemable loan notes provided 

by the group’s shareholders amounting to 

£142.9 million (2016: £130.9 million). 

These were offset by loans due from joint 

ventures of £7.1 million (2016:  

£6.1 million).

The decrease in net bank debt is due to an 

increase in cash generated from operations 

compared with last year, with income 

generated in the year exceeding interest 

payments and the cash investment required 

in land and work-in-progress to deliver 

CALA’s expansion plans. The increase in 

the value of the shareholder loan notes 

of £12.0 million (2016: £10.8 million) is 

attributable to accumulated interest applied.

Gearing, defined as the ratio of net bank 

debt to net assets including shareholder 

loan notes, has reduced to 16.3% since last 

year (2016: 29.7%) due to the reduction in 

net bank debt. If land creditors are added to 

net bank debt, gearing increases to 61.3% 

and 62.4% for 2017 and 2016 respectively.

PENSIONS

All eligible employees are able to accrue 

retirement benefits under the CALA Flexible 

Retirement Plan (‘DC Scheme’), the group’s 

Defined Contribution Pension Scheme 

operated by Standard Life. The default 

contribution rate is 3.0% of pensionable 

salary from employees and 7.0% from 

the company, with certain other matching 

alternatives available.

Due to the continued escalation in cost of 

providing retirement benefits on a defined 

benefit basis, the CALA Retirement and 

Death Benefits Scheme (‘the DB Scheme’) 

was closed to all future accrual with effect 

from 31 December 2015. This resulted in a 

curtailment gain of £1.2 million, credited to 

the income statement during the financial 

year to 30 June 2016. The IAS 19 net 

pension deficit shown in the balance sheet 

at 30 June 2017 is £9.6 million (2016: 

£7.4 million).

The most recent Triennial Valuation for the 

DB Scheme was carried out as at 6 April 

2015 and agreement reached with the 

Trustees on a new recovery plan which will 

eliminate the deficit by March 2020. The 

group has continued to comply fully with the 

recovery plan and has made special deficit 

contributions into the DB Scheme during the 

12 months to 30 June 2017 of £1.5 million 

(2016: £1.4 million) and a further payment 

of £0.5m since the balance sheet date.

The group, in consultation with the Trustees, 

continually monitors the Scheme with a view 

to reducing risk and funding volatility for the 

long-term security of members’ pensions. 

Following the closure to future accrual, both 

parties are now focused on steering the DB 

Scheme to self-sufficiency. 

FINANCIAL RISK AND 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT

The treasury function is centrally managed 

to support the operating activities of the 

group, its primary objective being to 

manage liquidity and interest rate risk.  

Any trading in financial instruments is 

prohibited and hedging is undertaken using 

simple risk management products, such as 

interest rate swaps.

The management of liquidity is a significant 

risk for the group. It is essential that cash 

flow is tightly managed and borrowing 

remains within agreed bank facility limits. 

The major variable in maintaining adequate 

liquidity is the impact of a deterioration in 

the housing market on cash flow. This is 

managed by the collection and monitoring 

of extensive market intelligence at a local 

and national level, combined with a clear 

and effective sales strategy aligned with the 

delivery of our financial plan. This is further 

supported by a close working relationship 

with our shareholders and debt providers.

The group has interest rate hedging in 

place, effected through five interest rate 

swaps with an average value of £100.0 

million covering the period from 1 July 

2017 to 21 March 2019 at a blended fixed 

rate of interest of 2.22% excluding margin.

At 30 June 2017, bank debt of £100.0 

million was hedged at a blended fixed rate 

of interest of 1.99% excluding margin. 

The aggregate fair value of all the group’s 

interest rate swaps at 30 June 2017 was a 

liability of £3.1 million (2016: liability of 

£5.0 million) with the positive movement in 

the year of £1.9 million reported as finance 

income under the ‘Exceptional items and 

revaluations’ column in the Consolidated 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

The fair value liability of £3.1 million has  

no cash impact and will reverse in full in 

future accounting periods, provided the 

interest rate swaps are held to maturity.

Direct foreign exchange exposure is 

negligible given the nature of the group’s 

business activities which are conducted 

exclusively in the United Kingdom.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

HIGH PEAK, SUNNINGDALE, BERKSHIRE

TAWNY DRIVE, BIRDHAM, WEST SUSSEX

NET BANK DEBT

2016
£123.9m

2015
£117.8m

2017
£78.4m
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (‘KPIs’)

The board monitors the group’s progress by reference to a range of selected KPIs. These KPIs are unaudited.

FINANCIAL  DEFINITION  COMMENTARY OPERATIONAL DEFINITION  COMMENTARY

OPERATIONAL  DEFINITION  COMMENTARY
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HOUSE SALES  
GROSS MARGIN

AVERAGE WEEKLY 
RESERVATIONS PER  
ACTIVE SITE

AVERAGE WEEKLY 
REVENUE PER  
ACTIVE SITE

HOME SALES 

FORWARD SALES 

House sales gross margin for the year eased back to 20.0% 
compared with 21.8% in 2016. The reduction was primarily due 
to the legacy impact of the market downturn in Aberdeen and 
continued weaker pricing for homes with sales values above £1 
million. In addition, a higher proportion of lower margin affordable 
housing revenue diluted house sales gross margin by 0.3% 
compared with last year.

The average weekly reservation rate per active site increased 
to 0.56 homes in 2017 compared with 0.48 achieved in 2016. 
The rise has been achieved despite a similar use of Help To Buy 
and some ongoing market challenges in our areas of operation. 
The higher sales rate has been driven by the impact of a greater 
number of homes centred around the group’s ASP exceeding the 
increase in the average number of sales outlets to 48 (2016: 45).

The average weekly revenue per active site is an important measure 
for CALA because it is a far more meaningful metric of CALA’s 
sales performance, given the size of the group’s ASP relative to that 
of its larger peers. The average weekly revenue per site increased 
by 7% to £271,000 (2016: £254,000) and is directly linked to 
the improvement in the average weekly reservation rate described 
above, although partially offset by a planned reduction in the ASP. 
This is a sector-leading performance and reflects the strength of our 
brand and sales capability.

The total number of homes sold by the group increased to a record 
1,677, a rise of 46% compared with 2016. The increase was due  
to a higher number of private homes completed, rising from 
1,002 to 1,322 from larger developments on average than the 
previous year. There was also a significant increase in the number 
of affordable homes delivered to 355, being more than double last 
year (2016: 149).

Forward sales at 29% equate to 382 private homes with a GDV of 
£178.7 million (2016: 30% and 303 private homes with a GDV of 
£160.0 million). Although the percentage is marginally lower than 
last year the number of homes forward sold has increased by 26%. 
The increase has been driven by a larger number of homes available 
for sale due to the growth of the business and CALA’s reducing 
exposure to the top end of the market where sales rates have been 
much slower.
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OPERATING MARGIN

RETURN ON  
CAPITAL EMPLOYED

The ratio of gross profit (before 
exceptional items and excluding 
abortive land costs) to housing revenue, 
including 100% of joint ventures, 
expressed as a percentage.

The number of homes sold and 
completed including joint ventures.

The ratio of operating profit (before 
exceptional items) to total revenue, 
expressed as a percentage.

The ratio of operating profit (before 
exceptional items) to average net assets 
after adding back net bank debt and 
fixed rate loan notes and deducting 
intangible assets and the deferred tax 
asset, expressed as a percentage.

Operating margin in 2017 fell back from last year’s record level to 
12.4% (2016: 14.3%) which was almost entirely attributable to the 
reduction in house sales gross margin. There has been no further 
improvement in the absorption of net operating expenses this year to 
offset the fall in house sales gross margin despite the strong rise in 
group revenue.

Return on capital employed continued at the record for the group of 
18.6% (2016: 18.6%) but remains below our stated target of 20%. 
The additional operating profit delivered in the year marginally 
outweighed a further increase in the carrying investment in new sites 
delivering in future years. Nonetheless, the business remains very 
capital efficient with a capital turn ratio for the year of 1.5x.

OVERALL CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION 

ANNUAL INJURY  
INCIDENCE RATE (‘AIIR’) 

The average number of net private 
homes reserved for sale including joint 
ventures for each week of the financial 
year divided by the average number of 
active selling sites for each week.

The average revenue for each net private 
home reserved for sale including joint 
ventures for each week of the financial 
year divided by the average number of 
active selling sites for each week.

The ratio of private homes, including joint 
ventures, reserved or better at 30 June for 
the following year to total private sales 
completions in the current financial year 
expressed as a percentage.

Overall customer satisfaction with the 
quality of the homes delivered and the 
service provided by CALA, both before 
and after sales, as measured through 
customer surveys undertaken by external 
consultants, In-house Research.

The total number of accidents 
reportable under RIDDOR for the year 
to 31 March expressed per 100,000 
employees and contractors.

This measure represents a mean overall satisfaction rating and to 
achieve in excess of 75 means that a majority of our customers have 
to be either ‘satisfied‘ or ‘very satisfied’. Although we have achieved 
a very high overall satisfaction score up on 2016 we aim to improve 
upon this in the year ahead on the back of the process changes and 
training investment made during the last 12 months.

The AIIR has improved since last year despite an increase in the 
number of reportable accidents from 16 to 18. The modest rise  
in the number of accidents, whilst regrettable, compares with a  
much greater increase in the number of employees and 
subcontractors working in the business resulting in a welcome fall  
in the AIIR in 2017.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (‘KPIs’)

OVERVIEW

The successful operation of the business 

and execution of the group’s strategy are 

subject to a number of significant risks.  

It is vital that these risks are understood  

and considered fully in all decision making.

The board has in place a risk management 

system for the group, each of its operating 

divisions, the IT function and land 

acquisition process. The aim being to 

highlight, manage and reduce the principal 

risks to which the group is exposed.

Risks are assessed and formally reviewed 

on a regular basis to ensure that the  

group is fully aware of their potential 

impact on the business. The controls 

in place to manage identified risks are 

also reviewed to ensure that they remain 

relevant and effective.

Each regional operating division maintains 

its own risk matrix, which captures and 

evaluates the significant risks applicable 

to their particular business activities, 

including the identification of key mitigation 

measures and any further action required. 

The risks are assessed at regular intervals 

by the regional management teams and 

the risk matrix is used at all regional board 

meetings to direct discussion to where it is 

most effective. Separately, the Operations 

Board maintains a group-level risk matrix 

containing strategic and macroeconomic 

risks combined with key operational risks 

distilled from the regional risk matrices. 

This overarching risk matrix is reviewed 

by the Group Board. The group also used 

external advisers to facilitate a number of 

risk review sessions.

The group’s internal audit function carried 

out a full assurance programme during the 

year, which included reviews of key financial 

controls, customer service, payroll and sales 

& marketing. The internal audit function 

currently partners with KPMG to undertake 

review work that is specialist in nature.

RISK APPETITE

The board has overall responsibility  

for determining the nature and extent  

of the risk it is willing to take and this  

is communicated clearly throughout  

the business.

In determining its appetite for risk the board 

is guided by the following key principles:

1.  Risks should be consistent with CALA’s 

business strategy, financial objectives and 

core values.

2.  Risks should only be accepted where 

there is sufficient, appropriate and 

measurable reward for taking the risk.

3.  Risks should be monitored closely and 

actively managed with sufficient resource 

required for the task.

RISK MANAGEMENT

OPERATIONAL  DEFINITION  COMMENTARY

LAND  DEFINITION  COMMENTARY

REPORTABLE  
ACCIDENTS

CONTRACTED  
LANDBANK

CONSENTED  
LANDBANK

STRATEGIC LAND  
PULL-THROUGH

The total number of accidents 
reportable under RIDDOR for the year 
to 31 March.

The estimated revenue generated 
from land owned or controlled. This 
includes strategic sites that have 
earned a planning status, and where 
the prospects for achieving a planning 
consent within a reasonable timescale 
are strong.

The estimated turnover value generated 
from land owned or controlled with an 
outline or detailed planning consent.

The proportion of homes sold and 
completed including joint ventures 
without a planning permission at the 
time a commercial interest was acquired 
in the site, expressed as a percentage.

The number of reportable accidents has risen from 16 to 18 
reflecting another significant increase in development activity during 
the year along with more employees and subcontractors working on 
our sites. Despite the increase in the number of reportable accidents 
during the year, a strong safety culture is in place and the board 
remains committed to its zero accident target. The group’s internal 
health and safety resource has again been increased to support our 
site teams as the business grows.

The contracted landbank has increased significantly in the year to 
30 June 2017. The number of plots increased by 3% from 15,399 
to 15,836 compared with the previous year and this has translated 
to a 7% rise in total GDV, with the average selling price increasing 
slightly to £372,000 (2016: £356,000). The planning status of the 
contracted landbank remains strong with 83% of GDV comprising 
sites with either a planning consent or an allocation for residential 
development within an adopted local plan. This compares with 85% 
last year.

The consented landbank has grown steadily during the year, with 
the number of plots increasing from 10,889 to 11,393. The ASP has 
also risen, from £365,000 to £380,000. The increase in size of the 
consented landbank has been driven by the acquisition of a number 
of larger sites with outline planning permission to further underpin 
our growth plans in the south east of England. In addition, during the 
year we secured planning permission on 873 plots from our strategic 
landbank, representing GDV of £284 million.

816 homes sold in the year (2016: 733) were from our strategic 
landbank or from developments controlled under conditional 
contracts where CALA secured a first-time planning permission. 
This equates to 49% of total homes sold in the year, down from 
64% a year ago. In order to reduce the timing risk associated 
with our future development pipeline, a greater proportion of new 
land is being acquired with an existing consent, normally outline 
planning permission.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal operating risks currently affecting the group along with key mitigation measures for each are described as follows:

HEALTH  
AND SAFETY

Injury or death caused 
by unsafe practices 
operated on our sites 
or in our offices.

We have a comprehensive health, safety and environmental management 
system in place. We have a positive and active safety culture throughout the 
group and proactively adapt our work practices to eliminate safety risks as they 
are identified. 

On-site safety compliance is monitored and reinforced through an in-house 
inspection regime and regular direct communication with subcontractors. 

We have a thorough training programme in place with minimum standards of 
competence that need to be attained based on position held.

During the year, the group health and safety team was expanded to  
facilitate more inspections and mentoring visits to site. The training resource  
was also increased.

This risk remains heightened 
during our current phase of 
significant volume growth 
and the increase in number 
of reportable accidents.

EU WITHDRAWAL

Uncertainty leads to 
a downturn in the 
housing market, 
adversely affecting 
profitability, cash flow 
and CALA’s strategic 
growth plans.

The group has a strong balance sheet with modest debt levels and operates with 
significant headroom in its banking facilities. 

The group gathers and considers a variety of market intelligence at a local and 
national level, which is reviewed regularly by management with prompt action 
taken in relation to pricing, build rates and the level of inventory as required.

We have reviewed all of our key potential land commitments to ensure their 
prospects are maximised in preparation for more difficult market conditions, 
should these materialise and are making alterations where needed. 

We have a strong portfolio of high quality developments in premium locations, 
supported by a strong brand proposition.

Whilst there has been no 
discernible deterioration in 
trading conditions resulting 
from the EU referendum, 
negotiations on terms for the 
UK’s withdrawal is likely to 
mean ongoing political and 
market uncertainty in the 
year ahead.

SKILLED 
TRADESMEN

Inability to maintain 
continuity of supply 
and quality of key 
trades on our sites.

We operate and manage a portfolio of approved subcontractors many with 
whom we have long-standing relationships.

Our construction and commercial teams review regularly our subcontractor 
base, seeking to add new partners to supplement our available resources  
where possible.

We provide a safe and organised working environment that allows our 
subcontractors to work efficiently and we offer competitive rates of pay with 
prompt payment.

We partner with The Prince’s Trust to introduce young people to the industry 
whom we place with our key subcontractors. We also employ certain key trades 
and apprentices on our own account.

The availability of competent 
key trades remains a 
critical risk to the timing of 
housing delivery, with staff 
shortages and subcontractor 
availability still presenting 
challenges from time to time 
despite expanding our pool 
of approved contractors.

PLANNING 
PERMISSION

Securing appropriate 
and timely planning 
permission on 
sufficient development 
sites in our contracted 
landbank, including 
the conclusion of 
section agreements 
and clearance of 
planning conditions 
to permit a site start 
in line with acquisition 
assumptions.

The group manages its planning risk by working collaboratively with all key 
stakeholders and decision makers, engaging in extensive local consultation.

We have high levels of skill and experience of the planning process within 
the business to ensure we only invest in opportunities with a strong chance of 
planning success.

We endeavour to support Local Authorities where possible with our own 
resources by initiating legal agreements and with the early submission of 
information to facilitate the timely clearance of pre-commencement  
planning conditions.

We incorporate planning uncertainties into our business planning, as well as 
running a surplus of developments in our planning pipeline to protect against 
the risk of refusal or delays arising from the appeals process.

This risk has been 
expanded since last year. 
Too many applications are 
being delayed or require 
appeal, often against the 
recommendation of officers. 
In addition, the time taken 
to clear site start conditions 
and to gain other statutory 
consents has become 
inordinately slow, leading to 
unacceptable delays.

PREMIUM 
BRAND AND 
REPUTATION

The loss of 
our HBF 5-star 
customer service 
rating represents 
a significant 
reputational risk for 
the group.

The group has in place a director responsible for product and customer service 
to review targets, performance and trends and ensure implementation of best 
practice across our operating regions.

Customer service delivery forms a material element of performance related pay 
for most employees in the group.

During the year, product handover and customer journey procedures were 
improved and further investment made in training and development to ensure we 
deliver CALA’s high standard of product and service to all of our purchasers.

We aim to regain the 
HBF 5-star rating at the 
first opportunity following 
the changes made to our 
approach during the year.

GROWTH 
MANAGEMENT

Inability to effectively 
manage our regional 
businesses as we 
rapidly expand the 
size of the group.

We have in place an appropriate organisational structure to deliver our plans, 
combined with the necessary oversight of operational activity.

The group continues to review, amend and document key processes and controls 
to ensure they are sufficiently clear and robust to enable the business to operate 
in an effective and controlled manner. Work in this area remains ongoing.

We have in place a strong and experienced senior leadership team and  
stability within our tier of regional directors that provides the comfort that we  
have sufficient expertise to ensure the increased business capacity can be 
managed effectively.

Whilst this risk remains 
elevated, we are seeing a 
continual improvement in 
the underlying strength of 
CALA and our capability to 
run a bigger business.

RISK 
INCREASED

RISK 
INCREASED

KEY  
PERSONNEL

The loss of key 
personnel and the 
inability to replace 
their skills and 
experience.

The group offers a positive, empowered, working culture.

We have in place a succession strategy which includes capability assessments 
and development plans for key individuals.

The group also operates a comprehensive benefits structure and a performance 
and personal development review system which are updated on a regular basis 
to ensure they remain effective.

Whilst staff turnover in  
the housing industry still 
remains high, our own 
attrition rates have eased 
during the past year.

RISK 
STABLE

RISK 
STABLE

RISK 
STABLE

RISK 
STABLE

RISK 
STABLE

RISK MITIGATION CHANGE SINCE 2016 RISK MITIGATION CHANGE SINCE 2016

The Strategic Report was approved by the 

board on 22 September 2017.

J. GRAHAM G. REID

Director

22 September 2017
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Director, Group Land Manager, the Group 

Commercial team and the two Regional 

Chairmen. This body provides an important 

control by reviewing and sanctioning 

all land acquisition and development 

commencement proposals, following a 

rigorous due diligence process by the 

regional teams.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

This policy has put in place a confidential 

method of communication for employees 

to raise matters of concern and for such 

matters to be properly and independently 

investigated. It is the role of the Chairman 

of the Audit and Risk Committee to oversee 

this policy and to act as one of the channels 

of communication in the event of a matter 

being raised.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICIES

The group has an anti-money laundering 

policy and an anti-bribery policy with 

relevant ancillary policies and processes 

including those dealing with gifts, 

hospitality and expenses. In addition to 

bringing the policies to the attention of 

staff and suppliers of services to the group, 

all staff undertake an online training 

module covering the Bribery Act and further 

appropriate training using a risk based 

approach continues to ensure that all staff 

are aware of the legislation and the zero 

tolerance approach taken by the group. 

In addition, regular training on the anti-

money laundering processes is undertaken 

by all sales staff. Online training modules 

for sales staff, and separately for all other 

staff, were rolled out in the final quarter  

of 2016.

COMPETITION POLICY

The group’s competition manual containing 

the policy and procedures to ensure 

compliance with competition legislation is 

in place and further training will be rolled 

out in 2017.

GDPR

The group has assembled a project team, 

supported by external advisers, to ensure 

that operating practices, documentation 

and policies are compliant with the General 

Data Protection Regulation when the 

legislation comes into force in May 2018.

INFORMATION SECURITY

CALA has engaged KPMG to assist us 

in updating the company’s information 

security governance processes. In addition 

to the introduction of new policies in 

this area, CALA will be identifying key 

information assets, including those 

impacted by the forthcoming GDPR 

legislation, and ensuring suitable 

arrangements are in place to protect  

this data as it is shared across the group 

and externally.

MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015

In December 2016 the group published 

its first statement in accordance with the 

requirements of the Modern Slavery Act 

2015. A review of our practices, policies 

and procedures is underway following a 

risk assessment related to modern slavery 

and how it impacts our business and  

supply chain.

FAILURE TO PREVENT FACILITATION  
OF TAX EVASION

The group is currently carrying out a risk 

assessment in connection with this new 

corporate offence with a view to preparing 

a group policy statement and updating our 

codes of conduct.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of CALA Group (Holdings) 

Limited present their report and the audited 

consolidated financial statements for the 

year ended 30 June 2017.

MEETINGS

The board of CALA Group (Holdings) 

Limited met 11 times during the financial 

year to 30 June 2017.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The board, through the Audit and Risk 

Committee, is responsible for reviewing  

the effectiveness of the group’s internal 

controls and risk management system.  

The Committee has monitored the 

effectiveness of the system of internal 

control throughout the year, including 

controls relating to operational, financial 

and compliance matters and has reported 

to the board accordingly.

Work previously carried out on the review 

of the online Quality Management System 

(‘QMS’) framework which documents 

processes and key controls covering 

operations and central support functions 

has resulted in the introduction of the 

‘CALA Way’ project. A business change 

manager has been appointed to oversee 

the ‘CALA Way’ project who will work 

with the business functions to embed the 

initiative into the company.

The internal audit function provides an 

additional level of assurance around the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the system 

of internal control, CALA’s governance and 

risk management system. This additional 

assurance is delivered by the Director of 

Internal Audit who reports functionally to 

the Audit Committee and administratively to 

the Group Finance Director. KPMG currently 

provides support to the Director of Internal 

Audit on certain specialist reviews.

During the year, the Audit and Risk 

Committee reviewed the group’s strategic 

annual and three-year internal audit plans, 

which set out a programme of reviews that 

focus on the key risks and priorities across 

the group. The Committee also considered 

the key findings, recommendations and 

management actions arising from the 

internal audit programme, as well as the 

internal control recommendations raised by 

the external auditor during the course of the 

external audit and the group’s response to 

dealing with such recommendations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The group is committed to achieving  

and maintaining a high standard of 

corporate governance.

ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

An Executive Board dealing with matters of 

policy, a Management Board responsible 

for delivery of the group’s business strategy 

and an Operations Board responsible for 

best practice and improvement initiatives 

are in place.

The group is organised into eight regional 

divisions, which are separate business units. 

Local boards of directors run these divisions 

and the Group Chief Executive and Group 

Finance Director sit on these boards. Clear 

reporting lines have been put in place as 

well as appropriate levels of delegation, 

with major decisions being escalated to the 

Management or Executive boards.

A Contract Authority Group is in place 

which comprises the Group Chief Executive, 

Group Finance Director, Group Land 

TEN BRUNSWICK ROAD, CITY OF EDINBURGH
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has delegated certain 

responsibilities to board committees 

with agreed terms of reference. These 

committees report regularly to the board.

1.  The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired 

by Jonatas Szkurnik. Matteo Colombo is 

also a member of the Committee. The 

Audit and Risk Committee meets at least 

four times per year. The Audit and Risk 

Committee assists the board in fulfilling 

its oversight responsibilities relating 

primarily to the consideration of financial 

information being reported, the system 

of internal control including the internal 

audit programme, risk management 

system and external audit process. The 

Group Finance Director, the General 

Counsel & Group Company Secretary 

and the Director of Internal Audit attend 

all meetings. The external auditors attend 

at least two meetings per year.

2.  The Remuneration Committee is chaired 

by Manjit Wolstenholme. The Group 

Chief Executive is also a member of 

the Committee. The Human Resources 

Director, the Group Finance Director and 

the General Counsel & Group Company 

Secretary attend, as appropriate, at the 

request of the Committee Chairman. 

The Committee meets at least twice 

a year and ensures that the executive 

directors and senior management are 

appropriately rewarded having regard to 

the financial performance of the group. 

The Committee met on six occasions 

during the financial year.

3.  Manjit Wolstenholme is the Chair of 

the Nomination Committee. The duties 

of the Committee are to review the 

structure, composition and diversity 

of the board including succession 

planning. The Group Chief Executive 

and a representative of the investor, 

Haut Investments Limited, sit on this 

committee, which met on one occasion 

during the year.

GOING CONCERN

The Consolidated Balance Sheet at 30 June 

2017 shows the group had net assets of 

£338.6 million.

The group’s most recent financial 

projections show that for the foreseeable 

future, net assets remain in a positive 

position at each financial year end.  

In addition, forecast debt requirements 

are comfortably within existing committed 

banking facilities which expire on 21 March 

2019, and the group is forecasting to be 

able to comply with its banking covenants 

at each appropriate test date.

As a result, the projected trading position 

for the group enables the directors to form 

a judgement that the company and group 

have adequate resources to continue to 

trade for the foreseeable future and that the 

group will be able to realise its assets and 

discharge its liabilities in the normal course 

of business.

As the bank loans expire in March 2019 the 

company has commenced discussions with 

its banks around the renewal of this facility 

and anticipates a new facility to be in place 

during the new financial year. 

For these reasons the directors believe it  

is appropriate to continue to adopt the 

going concern basis in preparing the 

financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been proposed or paid 

in the year (2016: nil).

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE 
CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions to charities during the year 

amounted to £166,098 (2016: £105,687). 

These donations were made to various local 

charities covering a range of community, 

school and charitable purposes. The group 

made no political contributions during the 

year (2016: nil).

DIRECTORS

The names of the current directors and 

changes in directorships during the year are 

listed on page 60.

At the date of this report the board 

comprises two executive and five non-

executive directors. Manjit Wolstenholme is 

non-executive Chairman.

All directors have access to the advice of 

the General Counsel & Group Company 

Secretary who ensures that the board, 

which meets at least six times a year, 

receives appropriate information for its 

decision-making, that the board procedures 

are followed and that the statutory 

requirements are met. There is a procedure 

whereby any director who wishes to do so 

in the furtherance of their duties may take 

independent professional advice.

As permitted by the Articles of Association, 

the directors have the benefit of an 

indemnity, which is a qualifying third party 

indemnity provision as defined by Section 

234 of the Companies Act 2006. The 

indemnity was in force throughout the last 

financial year and is currently in force. The 

company also purchased and maintained 

throughout the financial year Directors’ and 

Officers’ liability insurance in respect of 

itself and its directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
AND DISCLOSURE OF 
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each director, as at the date of this 

report, has confirmed that insofar as 

they are aware, there is no relevant audit 

information (that is, information needed 

by the company’s auditors in connection 

with preparing their report) of which 

the company’s auditors are unaware, 

and they have taken all the steps that 

they ought to have taken as a director 

in order to make themselves aware of 

any relevant audit information, and to 

establish that the company’s auditors are 

aware of that information. The auditors, 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated 

their willingness to continue in office, and 

their appointment will continue.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing 

the Annual Report and the financial 

statements in accordance with applicable 

law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to 

prepare financial statements for each 

financial year. Under that law the directors 

have prepared the group financial 

statements in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 

as adopted by the European Union 

and company financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by 

the European Union. Under company law 

the directors must not approve the financial 

statements unless they are satisfied that 

they give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the group and company and of 

the profit or loss of the group and company 

for that period. In preparing the financial 

statements, the directors are required to:

 •  select suitable accounting policies and 

then apply them consistently;

 •  state whether applicable IFRSs as 

adopted by the European Union have 

been followed for the group financial 

statements and IFRSs as adopted 

by the European Union have been 

followed for the company financial 

statements, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in 

the financial statements;

 •  make judgements and accounting 

estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and

 •  prepare the financial statements on 

the going concern basis unless it is 

inappropriate to presume that the 

group and company will continue  

in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping 

adequate accounting records that are 

sufficient to show and explain the group 

and company’s transactions and disclose 

with reasonable accuracy at any time 

the financial position of the group and 

company and enable them to ensure that 

the financial statements comply with the 

Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the 

group financial statements, Article 4 of the 

IAS Regulation.

The directors are also responsible for 

safeguarding the assets of the group and 

company and hence for taking reasonable 

steps for the prevention and detection of 

fraud and other irregularities.

In the case of each director in office at the 

date the Directors’ Report is approved:

 •  so far as the director is aware, there is 

no relevant audit information of which 

the group and company’s auditors are 

unaware; and

 •  they have taken all the steps that they 

ought to have taken as a director 

in order to make themselves aware 

of any relevant audit information 

and to establish that the group and 

company’s auditors are aware of  

that information. 

The Directors’ Report was approved by the 

board on 22 September 2017.

Director  

PINSENT MASONS SECRETARIAL LIMITED

Company Secretary

22 September 2017
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1. A. MARK COLLINS 
Non-Executive Director

Mark is a partner of Patron Capital Advisers LLP and 

Chairman of its UK investment activity. Mark is a chartered 

surveyor and has held a number of senior positions in the UK 

real estate market with GE Capital Real Estate, Land Securities 

Group Plc and Lloyds Banking Group. Mark joined the CALA 

board in 2013. 

2. ALAN D. BROWN 
Chief Executive

Alan joined CALA in 1986 as a development manager and 

held a range of positions including Divisional Managing 

Director, before being appointed to the Group Board in 2007 

as Regional Chairman of CALA Homes in England. In 2008, 

Alan was appointed Managing Director for CALA Homes 

across the UK and promoted to Chief Executive in 2009. 

7. GEOFFREY TIMMS 
Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Timms is the General Counsel & Company Secretary 

of Legal & General Group Plc. He has been Legal & General’s 

Chief Legal Officer since 1999. Aside from CALA his other 

external directorship is for Bracknell Regeneration Partnership 

Limited. Geoffrey joined the CALA board in 2016.

3. MANJIT WOLSTENHOLME 
Chairman

Manjit is a non-executive director and Chairman of the  

Audit Committee for Provident Financial and a range of  

other blue chip companies. Previously a senior partner at 

Gleacher Shacklock LLP, Manjit also worked for 13 years 

at Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, having graduated in 

Chemistry from Bristol University and trained as a  

Chartered Accountant with PricewaterhouseCoopers.  

Manjit joined the CALA board in 2015.

4. MATTEO COLOMBO 
Non-Executive Director

Heading the development of Strategic Equity in Legal & 

General’s Direct Investment team, Matteo worked for nine 

years at private equity company Terra Firma and prior to that 

spent four years at Morgan Stanley. A Cambridge graduate 

in Mechanical & Manufacturing Engineering, Matteo is a 

Chartered Financial Analyst. He is also a non-executive 

director of the alternative asset manager, Pemberton Group. 

Matteo was appointed to the CALA board in 2016.

5. JONATAS SZKURNIK 
Non-Executive Director

Jonatas joined Patron in August 2007 and works on Patron’s  

direct investments in real estate, asset-backed operating 

companies and corporate investments. During his time with 

Patron, he has been involved in investments in the residential, 

commercial and healthcare sectors. Jonatas was appointed  

to the CALA board in 2013. 

6. J. GRAHAM G. REID 
Group Finance Director

Following various financial roles with TDG Plc and  

Thomson Travel Group, Graham joined CALA in 1995 as 

Divisional Finance Manager. He was promoted to Finance 

Director of CALA Group in 2001. Graham is a former 

Chairman of the Scottish Finance Directors Group and  

ACCA Scotland President.

321 4 5 6 7
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DIRECTORS

Alan D. Brown
Chief Executive

J. Graham G. Reid
Group Finance Director

Manjit Wolstenhome
Independent Chairman

A. Mark Collins
Non-Executive Director

Geoffrey Timms
Non-Executive Director

Matteo Colombo
Non-Executive Director

Jonatas Szkurnik
Non-Executive Director

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pinsent Masons Secretarial Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

CALA House

54 The Causeway

Staines-Upon-Thames

Surrey

TW18 3AX

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and

Statutory Auditors

Atria One

144 Morrison Street

Edinburgh

EH3 8EX

PRINCIPAL SOLICITORS

Pinsent Masons LLP

Princes Exchange

1 Earl Grey Street

Edinburgh

EH3 9AQ

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Scotland

The Mound

Edinburgh

EH1 1YZ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE  
MEMBERS OF CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OPINION

In our opinion:

•  CALA Group (Holdings) Limited’s group 

financial statements and company 

financial statements (the ‘financial 

statements’) give a true and fair view 

of the state of the group’s and of the 

company’s affairs as at 30 June 2017 

and of the group’s profit and cash flows 

for the year then ended;

•  the group financial statements have been 

properly prepared in accordance with 

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

•  the company financial statements have 

been properly prepared in accordance 

with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice (United Kingdom 

Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 

101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’, 

and applicable law); and

•  the financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the 

requirements of the Companies  

Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, 

included within the Annual Report and 

Financial Statements (the ‘Annual Report’), 

which comprise: the Consolidated and 

Company balance sheets as at 30 June 

2017; the Consolidated statement of 

comprehensive Income, the Consolidated 

cash flow statement, and the Consolidated 

and company statements of changes 

in equity for the year then ended; the 

statement of accounting policies; and the 

notes to the financial statements.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing (UK) 

(‘ISAs (UK)’) and applicable law.              

Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) 

are further described in the Auditors’ 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements section of our report. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We remained independent of the group  

in accordance with the ethical  

requirements that are relevant to our  

audit of the financial statements in the  

UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING  
TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of the 

following matters in relation to which ISAs 

(UK) require us to report to you when: 

•  the directors’ use of the going concern 

basis of accounting in the preparation 

of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or 

•  the directors have not disclosed in 

the financial statements any identified 

material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the group’s and 

company’s ability to continue to adopt 

the going concern basis of accounting for 

a period of at least twelve months from 

the date when the financial statements 

are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events  

or conditions can be predicted, this 

statement is not a guarantee as to the 

group’s and company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern.

REPORTING ON  
OTHER INFORMATION 

The other information comprises all of 

the information in the Annual Report 

and Financial Statements other than the 

financial statements and our auditors’ 

report thereon. The directors are 

responsible for the other information. 

Our opinion on the financial statements 

does not cover the other information and, 

accordingly, we do not express an audit 

opinion or, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in this report, any form of 

assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained 

in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. If we identify an 

apparent material inconsistency or material 

misstatement, we are required to perform 

procedures to conclude whether there is 

a material misstatement of the financial 

statements or a material misstatement of 

the other information. If, based on the work 

we have performed, we conclude that there 

is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report based on 

these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and 

Directors’ Report, we also considered 

whether the disclosures required by the UK 

Companies Act 2006 have been included.  

Based on the responsibilities described 

above and our work undertaken in the 

course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us 

also to report certain opinions and matters 

as described below.

STRATEGIC REPORT AND 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In our opinion, based on the work 

undertaken in the course of the audit, the 

information given in the Strategic Report 

and Directors’ Report for the year ended  

30 June 2017 is consistent with the 

financial statements and has been  

prepared in accordance with applicable 

legal requirements. 

In light of the knowledge and 

understanding of the group and parent 

company and their environment obtained  

in the course of the audit, we did not 

identify any material misstatements in the 

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR  
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND THE AUDIT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Statement 

of directors’ responsibilities, the directors 

are responsible for the preparation of the 

financial statements in accordance with 

the applicable framework and for being 

satisfied that they give a true and fair 

view. The directors are also responsible 

for such internal control as they determine 

is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the 

directors are responsible for assessing 

the group’s and the company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing 

as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless the directors 

either intend to liquidate the group or the 

company or to cease operations, or have 

no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE 
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 

report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities 

for the audit of the financial statements  

is located on the FRC’s website at:  

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  

This description forms part of our  

auditors’ report.

USE OF THIS REPORT

This report, including the opinions, 

has been prepared for and only for 

the company’s members as a body in 

accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 

of the Companies Act 2006 and for no 

other purpose. We do not, in giving these 

opinions, accept or assume responsibility 

for any other purpose or to any other 

person to whom this report is shown or  

into whose hands it may come save  

where expressly agreed by our prior 

consent in writing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

COMPANIES ACT 2006  
EXCEPTION REPORTING

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are 

required to report to you if, in our opinion:

•  we have not received all the information 

and explanations we require for our 

audit; or

•  adequate accounting records have not 

been kept by the company, or returns 

adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; 

or

•  certain disclosures of directors’ 

remuneration specified by law are not 

made; or

•  the parent company financial statements 

are not in agreement with the accounting 

records and returns. 

We have no exceptions to report arising 

from this responsibility.

Mark Hoskyns-Abrahall  

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and  

Statutory Auditors

Edinburgh, 22 September 2017
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   Year ended 30 June 2017   Year ended 30 June 2016
        
  Before Exceptional  Before Exceptional  
  exceptional items and  exceptional items and 
  items and revaluations Year ended items and  revaluations Year ended
  revaluations  (note 2)  30 June 2017 revaluations (note 2) 30 June 2016
 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Continuing operations:        
Revenue 1 747,928  - 747,928  587,091  - 587,091
Cost of sales  (603,611)  - (603,611)  (463,287)  415 (462,872)

Gross profit   144,317 - 144,317  123,804 415 124,219

Net operating expenses  (51,981) - (51,981) (41,523) - (41,523)
Other operating income  488 - 488 1,399 - 1,399
        
Operating profit  92,824 - 92,824 83,680 415 84,095
        
Finance income  113 1,951 2,064 1,382 - 1,382
Finance costs  (24,384) - (24,384) (24,824) (2,547) (27,371)
        
Finance costs - net 5 (24,271) 1,951 (22,320) (23,442) (2,547) (25,989)

Share of post-tax loss of 
joint ventures 10 (59) - (59) (103) - (103)
        
Profit before tax 3 68,494 1,951 70,445 60,135 (2,132) 58,003

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 (14,731) (371) (15,102) (12,588) 405 (12,183)
        
Profit for the year  53,763 1,580 55,343  47,547 (1,727) 45,820

Profit attributable to:        
Owners of the parent  53,763 1,580 55,343 47,546 (1,727) 45,819
Non-controlling interests  - - - 1 - 1
   
  53,763 1,580 55,343 47,547 (1,727) 45,820

Other comprehensive income        
        
Profit for the year  53,763 1,580 55,343 47,547 (1,727) 45,820
        
Other comprehensive income        
Remeasurements of post-employment  
benefit obligation  21 (3,446) - (3,446) (3,521) - (3,521)
Movement in deferred tax relating to  
post-employment benefit obligation  547 - 547 471 - 471
        
Other comprehensive income for   (2,899) - (2,899) (3,050) - (3,050)
the year     
        
Total comprehensive income for the year  50,864 1,580 52,444 44,497 (1,727) 42,770
        
Attributable to:        
Owners of the parent  50,864 1,580 52,444 44,496 (1,727) 42,769
Non-controlling interests  - - - 1 - 1 
        
Total comprehensive income for the year  50,864 1,580 52,444 44,497 (1,727) 42,770

        
The company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the parent company profit and  
loss account.
The profit for the parent company for the financial year was £12.6 million (2016: £11.5 million).
The notes on pages 81 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

  Group Group Company Company
  2017 2016 2017 2016
 Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets      
Non-current assets     
Intangible assets 7 48,730 48,730 - -
Property, plant and equipment 8 2,771 2,846 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 9 - - 90,643 90,643
Investments in jointly controlled entities 10 158 515 - -
Available for sale financial assets 11 1,869 2,012 - -
Deferred tax assets 18 - 6,489 - -
      
  53,528 60,592 90,643 90,643

Current assets     
Available for sale financial assets 11 175 252 - -
Inventories 12 842,599 707,929 - -
Trade and other receivables 13 50,865 26,646 146,802 134,260
Cash at bank and in hand  21,645 81,126 - -
      
  915,284 815,953 146,802 134,260

     
Total assets  968,812 876,545 237,445 224,903
      
Current liabilities     
Derivative financial instruments 14 (167) - - -
Loans and borrowings 15 (70,000) (25,000) - -
Corporation tax  (2,364) - - -
Trade and other payables 16 (294,021) (180,070) (381) (454)

  (366,552) (205,070) (381) (454)
Non-current liabilities     
Derivative financial instruments 14 (2,925) (5,043) - -
Loans and borrowings 15 (172,948) (310,902) - -
Trade and other payables 16 (76,451) (61,938) - -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 (1,747) - - -
Retirement benefit obligations 21 (9,602) (7,449) - -
  
  (263,673) (385,332) - -

Total liabilities  (630,225) (590,402) (381) (454)
      
Net assets  338,587 286,143 237,064 224,449

      
Equity      
Ordinary share capital 19 4,350 4,350 4,350 4,350
Share premium  195,440 195,440 195,440 195,440
Retained earnings brought forward  86,060 43,291 24,659 13,182
Income attributable to the parent  52,444 42,769 12,615 11,477
Retained earnings carried forward  138,504 86,060 37,274 24,659
   
Equity attributable to the parent  338,294 285,850 237,064 224,449
Non-controlling interest  293 293 - -
      
Total equity  338,587 286,143 237,064 224,449

The notes on pages 81 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements of CALA Group (Holdings) 
Limited (registration number 08428265) were approved by the board of directors on 22 September 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

J. Graham G. Reid, Director      
    

CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
at 30 June 2017    

CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2017
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CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 30 June
  2017 2016
 Notes £000 £000
    
Cash flows from operating activities    
Cash generated from operations A  61,083 6,520 
Interest paid  (10,288) (10,253)
Corporation tax paid  (3,592) (437)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  47,203 (4,440)
   
 
  
Cash flows from investing activities    
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  (1,181) (914)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  135 89 
Dividends received from joint ventures  356 -

Net cash used in investing activities  (690) (825)
   
 
  
Cash flows from financing activities    
Proceeds from issuance of fixed rate loan notes  - 62
Repayment of fixed rate loan notes  - (319)
Net repayment of loans from joint ventures  (994) (514)
Drawdown of bank loans  27,500 70,000
Repayment of bank loans  (132,500) (15,000)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (105,994) 54,229
    
    
  
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  (59,481) 48,964
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  81,126 32,162

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  21,645 81,126

 Ordinary    Non- 
 share Share Retained  controlling Total
 capital premium earnings Total interests equity
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
       
 
Balance at 1 July 2015 4,350 195,440 43,291 243,081 292 243,373
Profit for the year - - 45,819 45,819 1 45,820
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3,050) (3,050) - (3,050) 
      
Balance at 30 June 2016 4,350 195,440 86,060 285,850 293 286,143

       
 
       
 
Profit for the year - - 55,343 55,343 - 55,343 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (2,899) (2,899) - (2,899)
      
Balance at 30 June 2017 4,350 195,440 138,504 338,294 293 338,587

       
 
       
 
       
 
 Ordinary    Non- 
 share Share Retained  controlling Total
 capital premium earnings Total interests equity
Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
       
 
Balance at 1 July 2015 4,350 195,440 13,182 212,972 - 212,972
Profit for the year - - 11,477 11,477 - 11,477
       
Balance at 30 June 2016 4,350 195,440 24,659 224,449 - 224,449
       
 
       
Profit for the year - - 12,615 12,615 - 12,615
       
Balance at 30 June 2017 4,350 195,440 37,274 237,064 - 237,064
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
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   Year ended Year ended
   30 June 30 June
   2017 2016
A. Cash generated from operations    £000 £000 
  
Profit before corporation tax   70,445 58,003
Adjustments for:     
Finance costs - net   22,320 25,989 
Share of loss from joint ventures   59 103
Depreciation charge   1,243 1,279
Gain on disposal of fixed assets   (122) (65)
Retirement benefits   (1,500) (1,509)
Movements in working capital:  
(Increase) in inventories   (134,670) (102,896)
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables   (24,328) 7,127
Increase in trade and other payables   127,312 17,509
Decrease in available for sale financial assets   324 980
     
Cash generated from operations   61,083 6,520

B. Reconciliation of net cash flow to net debt   £000 £000
    
(Decrease) / increase in cash in the year   (59,481) 48,964
Cash outflow from increase in amounts due by joint ventures   994 514
Accrued interest on fixed rate loan notes   (12,046) (11,055)
Proceeds from issuance of fixed rate loan notes   - (62)
Repayment of fixed rate loan notes   - 319
Drawdown of bank loans   (27,500) (70,000)
Repayment of bank loans   132,500 15,000
     
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows   34,467 (16,320)

    
Net debt as at 1 July   (248,708) (232,388) 
   
Net debt as at 30 June   (214,241) (248,708)

C. Analysis of net debt As at Accrued Cash As at
 1 July interest flow 30 June
 2016   2017 
Cash and cash equivalents: £000 £000 £000 £000
     
Cash at bank and in hand 81,126 - (59,481) 21,645
     
    
Loans:     
Amounts owed by joint ventures 6,068 - 994 7,062

     
Debt:     
Bank loans (205,000) - 105,000 (100,000)
Loan notes (130,902) (12,046) - (142,948)
  
 (335,902) (12,046) 105,000 (242,948)
     
Net debt (248,708) (12,046) 46,513 (214,241) 
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CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
for the year ended 30 June 2017

CALA Group (Holdings) Limited (‘the company’) and its subsidiaries (together, ‘the group’) are a national homebuilder. The Company  

is a limited company and is registered, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of the registered office is CALA 

House, 54 The Causeway, Staines-Upon-Thames, Surrey, TW18 3AX.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies 

have been consistently applied.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of CALA Group (Holdings) Limited have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), the Companies Act 2006 that applies to companies 

reporting under IFRS, and IFRS IC interpretations. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and liabilities (including derivative 

instruments) at fair value through the Statement of comprehensive income. The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling 

(£) which is the group’s functional and presentational currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of 

judgement or complexity are particularly around the carrying value of land and work in progress, future sales volumes, margins on sites 

and assumptions used regarding the defined benefit pension scheme and the impairment of intangibles. These judgements have been 

carefully made based on all available internal information and supported by information from various external sources where appropriate.

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial 

Reporting Council. Accordingly the Company financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, and in accordance 

with the Companies Act 2006 and Financial Reporting Standard 101 (‘FRS101’).

Under FRS101, the Company is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that consolidated financial 

statements, which include the Company, are publicly available. The Company has also taken advantage of the exemption contained in 

FRS101 regarding ‘Related Party Disclosures’ and has not reported transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries. 

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

a) New and amended standards adopted by the group

The group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards which became effective for financial years beginning 

on 1 July 2016. None of these standards or amendments have had a material impact on these financial statements.

• Amendments to IAS1: Disclosure initiative

• Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

• Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

• Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment entities – applying the consolidation exception

• Amendments to IAS 27: Equity method in separate financial statements

b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following pronouncements may have a significant effect on the group’s financial statements but are not applicable for the year ending 

30 June 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Except as disclosed below, the full impact of these 

accounting changes is being assessed by the group.

•  IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.  

It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but 

simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised 

cost, fair value through OCI and fair value through P&L. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the 

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value 

through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI not recycling. There is now a new 

expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no 

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

  changes to classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, 

for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2018. Early adoption is permitted, subject to EU endorsement. 

•  IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful 

information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising 

from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has 

the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 

‘Construction contracts’ and related interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 

and earlier application is permitted, subject to EU endorsement. 

•  IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting 

useful information to users of financial statements about the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from 

IFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted for on balance sheet for lessees. The standard replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’, and 

related interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and earlier application is 

permitted, subject to EU endorsement and the entity adopting IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ at the same time. 

GOING CONCERN

The directors have prepared these financial statements on the going concern basis.

The consolidated balance sheet at 30 June 2017 shows the group had net assets of £338.6 million.

The group’s most recent financial projections show that for the foreseeable future net assets remain in a positive position at each  

financial year end and the group is able to comply with its banking covenants at each test date. In addition, the financial projections  

have been sensitised to assess the impact of poorer market conditions on the profit and loss account, borrowings profile, balance sheet 

and financial covenants.

As a result, the projected trading position for the group and associated sensitivity analysis enables the directors to form a judgment that 

the company and group have adequate resources to continue to trade for the foreseeable future, and that the group will be able to realise 

its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

As the bank loans expire in March 2019 the company has commenced discussions with its banks around the renewal of this facility and 

anticipates a new facility to be in place during the new financial year.

For these reasons the directors believe it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION AND GOODWILL

The consolidated financial statements comprise those of the company and all its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the 

group has the power to direct the relevant activities of the entities, the rights to variable returns and the ability to use its power to influence 

the returns. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are also considered when 

assessing whether the group controls another entity. The group also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of 

the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 

from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a 

subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests 

issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration 

arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured 

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-

by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s 

identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the 

fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit 

or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its 

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses 

resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

A jointly controlled entity is an entity in which the group holds an interest with one or more other parties where a contractual arrangement 

has established joint control over the entity. Jointly controlled entities are accounted for under IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ using the 

equity method of accounting. 

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue consists of the sales of houses net of discounts and sales incentives, land and commercial properties, and joint venture 

management fees. Sales of houses are recognised on legal completion. The sale proceeds of part exchange properties are not included in 

revenue however the net gain or loss, inclusive of transaction costs, for the purchase and sale of part exchange properties is included as 

a reduction in turnover as the purchase and sale of part exchange properties is regarded as a mechanism for selling. Sales of land and 

commercial property are recognised on unconditional exchange, namely when contracts are exchanged or missives concluded and, where 

appropriate, construction is complete. Management fees which represent a reimbursement of costs incurred on behalf of joint ventures 

are recognised as invoiced. Other management fees are recognised as turnover when realised or in proportion to the group’s share in the 

respective joint ventures.

NET OPERATING EXPENSES

Net operating expenses include, inter alia, the overhead costs of all office based employees, including construction and sales management 

not based permanently on-site.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original purchase 

price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight line basis at rates estimated to write off the cost of the relevant 

assets over their expected useful lives. The annual rates used are:

 Buildings 2%

 Computers 25 - 33%

 Plant and equipment 25%

Freehold land is not depreciated.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the group’s interest in the 

fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest 

in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the Cash Generating Units 

(‘CGUs’), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the 

goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. 

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value 

less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is credited to the income statement immediately. 

BRAND

Internally generated brands are not held on the balance sheet. The group carries assets on the balance sheet only for brands that have 

been acquired. Acquired brand values are calculated based on discounted cash flows. No amortisation is charged on brand intangibles, 

as the group believes that the value of the brands is maintained indefinitely. The factors that result in the durability of the brands 

capitalised are that there are no material legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factors that limit the useful life 

of these intangibles. The acquired brands are tested annually for impairment by performing a value in use calculation, using a discount 

factor based on the group’s pre-tax weighted average cost of capital, on the branded revenue stream.

COST OF SALES

Home building cost of sales includes land, construction, design, advertising and site overheads. All such costs are written off on a site-

by-site basis by comparing turnover to date with turnover forecast for the whole site, and applying the resulting proportion to the total 

forecast costs.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest incurred by the group is charged to the profit and loss account in that period. Interest incurred by joint venture development 

companies is treated as a development cost and carried in work-in-progress. It is charged to the profit and loss account in accordance 

with the stage of completion of the development. Interest incurred by joint venture development companies which relates to land without 

the benefit of a planning consent is charged to the profit and loss account in that period. Interest incurred by joint venture companies 

which hold property for trading purposes is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND REVALUATIONS

Exceptional items and revaluations comprise items of income and expense that are material in amount, unusual or infrequent in nature 

and which merit separate disclosure in order to provide an understanding of the group’s underlying performance. Examples of events 

giving rise to the disclosure of income and expense as exceptional items include, but are not limited to, reorganisation of operations 

and economic events which necessitate a review of asset valuations including land and work-in-progress. The group has also separately 

disclosed the mark to market revaluation of interest rate swaps under IAS 39.

TAXATION

Tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates, and adjusted 

for any tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amount of 

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences 

are not provided for: goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting or taxable profit, and differences 

relating to investment in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred  

tax provided is based on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period  

when the asset is realised or the liability settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 

reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset 

can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a 

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities when the group intends to settle its current tax assets and 

liabilities on a net basis.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The group has entered into derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk arising from 

the group’s sources of finance. The group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to  

their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss immediately within finance  

income and costs. Due to the inherent volatility of fair value measurements, the gain or loss is shown separately within exceptional items 

and revaluations.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-derivative financial assets are classified as either ‘available for sale financial assets’ or ‘loans and receivables’. The classification 

depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. 

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available for sale financial assets comprise shared equity loans. Receivables on extended terms granted as part of a sales transaction are 

secured by way of a second legal charge on the respective property, and are stated at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes 

in fair value are recognised in the other comprehensive income section of the statement of comprehensive income, with the exceptions 

of impairment losses, changes in future cash flows and interest calculated using the effective interest rate method, which are recognised 

within profit for the year. Where the asset is disposed of, or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in other comprehensive income is included in the income statement for the year. 

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trade and other receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date and are impaired where there is 

objective evidence that the recovery of the receivable is in doubt.

Objective evidence of impairment could include significant financial difficulty of the customer, default on payment terms or the customer 

going into liquidation. 

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade or other receivable 

is considered uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 

credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the income statement.

For financial assets classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the value of the property underpinning the value 

or the loan or increased risk of default are considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables on normal terms do not carry any interest, are stated at amortised cost and are assessed for recoverability on an 

ongoing basis. Trade and other receivables are classified as ‘loans and receivables’.

INVENTORIES 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value for home building is assessed internally after 

taking account of any relevant available market information. Land option premiums are amortised over the life of the option or written off 

in full if planning is unlikely to be achieved. All other option costs are written off as incurred. 

Due to the scale of the group’s developments, site-wide development costs are allocated between units built in the current year and those 

built in future years. It also has to estimate costs to complete on such developments. In making these assessments, there is a degree  

of inherent uncertainty. The group has developed internal controls to assess and review carrying values and the appropriateness of 

estimates made. 

Where land is held under option and planning permission is achieved, the contractual value of the land is recognised in inventory once the 

option is exercised and a contractual commitment exists.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and bank overdrafts. 

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables on normal terms are not interest bearing and are stated at amortised cost. Trade payables on extended terms, particularly 

in respect of land purchases, are initially recorded at their fair value at the date of acquisition of the asset to which they relate by 

discounting at prevailing market interest rates at the date of recognition. The discount to nominal value, which will be paid in settling the 

deferred purchase terms liability, is amortised over the period of the credit term and charged to finance costs using the effective interest 

rate method. Subcontractor accruals are recorded within trade payables and are based on the valuation of work performed.

BANK BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance costs are recognised as an expense in 

the income statement in the year to which they relate. Bank arrangement fees are amortised over the term of the bank borrowings.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the group will be 

required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation 

at the balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity as a 

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

PENSIONS

The group operates both a defined benefit pension scheme and a defined contribution pension scheme.  

The liability in respect of the defined benefit scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, 

less the fair value of the scheme’s assets, together with adjustments for actuarial gains and losses. The defined benefit obligation is 

calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation 

is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated 

in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension 

obligation. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 

to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Defined benefit pension costs are assessed in accordance with 

the advice of qualified actuaries.

For defined contribution plans, the group pays contributions to privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, 

contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 

recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash 

refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments are carried in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which is dependent upon management 

assessment of future trading activity and is therefore subject to a degree of inherent uncertainty. Provisions are made where necessary to 

reflect any impairment. 
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1. REVENUE

All revenue relates to residential home building and originates in the United Kingdom.

2. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND REVALUATIONS
    
  Group Group
  Year ended Year ended 
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016  
   restated
  £000 £000

Cost of sales:    
Bad debt provision  - 415

  - 415 
   
Finance costs - net:
Fair value gains / (losses) on interest rate swaps  1,951 (2,547) 
  
Corporation tax
Deferred tax on above items  (371) 405 
    
  1,580 (1,727)

To more accurately reflect the underlying performance of the business, fair value movements on interest rate swaps have been shown within 
exceptional items and revaluations. 

The carrying value of trade receivables is reviewed on a regular basis, and in prior years, the company made significant write-downs to the 
carrying value of trade receivables which were reported within exceptional items and revaluations at the time due to their nature as non-core 
elements of the business and value. At 30 June 2016, the directors carried out a review of these which resulted in write-backs of £0.4 million in 
the prior year. 

    
   
 

CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
for the year ended 30 June 2017

FINANCE AND OPERATING LEASES

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements which give rights approximating to ownership (finance leases), the assets are treated 

as if they had been purchased outright and the corresponding liability to the leasing company is included as an obligation under finance 

leases. Depreciation on leased assets is charged to the profit and loss account on the same basis as other fixed assets. Leasing payments 

are allocated between capital and interest and the interest is charged to the profit and loss account in proportion to the reducing capital 

element outstanding. Costs in respect of operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term 

unless another systematic basis is more representative.

COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied to the parent company are consistent to the accounting policies disclosed above. These policies have been 

consistently applied to all years presented.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In applying the group’s accounting policies which are described in the accounting policies note, the directors have made no individual 

judgements that have a significant impact upon the financial statements, except those involving estimation, which are dealt with below.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date are:

LAND AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Valuations which include an estimation of costs to complete and remaining revenues are carried out at regular intervals throughout the 

year, during which site development costs are allocated between units built in the current year and those to be built in future years. These 

assessments include a degree of inherent uncertainty when estimating the profitability of a site, the amount of profit recognised on sales 

made to date and in assessing any impairment provisions which may be required against inventory in the balance sheet.

The group has conducted a review of the net realisable value of its inventory carrying values which resulted in no material change to the 

inventory value. The reviews were conducted on a site-by-site basis, using valuations that incorporated selling price and development cost 

movements, based on local management and the board’s assessment of market conditions existing at the balance sheet date. If there are 

significant movements in UK house prices or development costs beyond management’s expectations, then further impairments/reversals of 

previous write-downs of land and work-in-progress may be necessary.

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLES

The determination of the impairment calculation for the group’s goodwill and indefinite life brand intangible requires an estimation of 

the group’s ability to successfully convert its current and strategic land holdings. The calculations require an estimate of the future cash 

flows expected, including the anticipated growth rate of revenue and costs, and requires the determination of a suitable discount rate to 

calculate the present value of the cash flows. The discount rate used is based upon the average capital structure of the group and current 

market assessments of the time value of money and risk appropriate to the group’s home building business. Changes in these may impact 

upon the group’s discount rate in future periods. At 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill is £40.1 million (2016: £40.1 million) 

and the carrying value of the indefinite life brand is £8.6 million (2016: £8.6 million), with no impairment recognised during the year 

ended 30 June 2017 (2016: nil).

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME

The directors engage a qualified independent actuary to calculate the group’s liability in respect of its defined benefit pension scheme. In 

calculating this liability, it is necessary for actuarial assumptions to be made, which include discount rates, salary and pension increases, 

price inflation, the long-term rate of return upon scheme assets and mortality.

As actual rates of increase and mortality may differ from those assumed, the pension liability may differ from that included in these 

financial statements. Note 21 details the main assumptions in accounting for the group’s defined benefit pension scheme along with 

sensitivity analysis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

4. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

  Group Group 
  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016
  Number Number

The average monthly number of employees during the year, including directors, was made up as follows:  

Home building: site  394 329
Home building: office  479 440
    
  873 769
   
 
  Group Group
  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016
  £000 £000

Employee costs during the year amount to:   

Wages and salaries  52,169 41,077
Social security costs  6,344 4,704
Other pension costs  2,971 2,608
   
  61,484 48,389
   

3. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

  Group Group 
  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016
  £000 £000

Stated after charging/(crediting):    
   
Staff costs (note 4)  61,484 48,389
Depreciation  1,243 1,279
Operating leases: - hire of plant and machinery  1,168 998
                           - land and buildings  1,547 1,025
Auditors’ remuneration:
 The audit of the company’s financial statements  20 20 
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and its associates for    
other services:    
  The audit of the company’s subsidiaries  178 185
  Audit-related assurance services  3 3
  Tax compliance services  62 80
  Tax advisory services  15 24
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  (122) (65)
Rental income - operating leases  (47) (35)

The tax fee disclosed above includes £1,000 (2016: £1,000) in respect of the company.

4. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

  Group Group
  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016
  £000 £000

Directors’ remuneration:   
 
Aggregate emoluments  2,335 1,043
Defined contribution plan - company contributions  58 60

  2,393 1,103

Retirement benefits are accruing to two directors (2016: two) under the group defined benefit scheme at 30 June 2017.

Highest paid director:
   
Aggregate emoluments  769 461
Defined contribution plan - company contributions  - 31
    
Defined benefit pension scheme:
Accrued pension at 30 June  46 43
   

5. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

  Group Group 
  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016
  £000 £000

Finance costs:   
Interest expense on bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings  23,093 22,356
Imputed interest on deferred land payables  1,081 2,452
Fair value losses on interest rate swaps  - 2,547
Other finance costs  210 16
    
Finance costs  24,384 27,371
    
   
 
Finance income:
Fair value gains on interest rate swaps  (1,951) - 
Imputed interest on available for sale financial assets  (104) (293)
Interest receivable  (9) (44)
Other finance income  - (1,045)
    
Finance income  (2,064) (1,382)
   
Net finance costs  22,320 25,989
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
    
   Group 
    
 Goodwill Brand Total
 £000 £000 £000

Cost   
 
As at 30 June 2017 and 2016 40,144 8,586 48,730
   
Accumulated amortisation and impairment   
 
As at 30 June 2017 and 2016 - - -
   
Carrying amount at 30 June 2017 40,144 8,586 48,730
   
Carrying amount at 30 June 2016 40,144 8,586 48,730
 
   
Impairment test for brand    
   
The group does not amortise the brand acquired with CALA Group Limited, being CALA Homes, valued at £8.6 million (2016: £8.6 million), 
as the directors consider that this has an indefinite life. The directors consider that this brand has an indefinite life due to the fact that the group 
intends to hold and support the brand for an indefinite period and there are no factors that would prevent it from doing so.  
   
The group tests its indefinite life brand annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that it might be impaired. The 
recoverable amount is determined using a value-in-use calculation. The value-in-use was determined by discounting expected future cash 
flows. The first four years of cash flows were determined using cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by 
management. The cash flows for year five onwards were extrapolated in perpetuity using an estimated growth rate of 2.25% (2016: 2.25%), 
which is based upon the expected long-term growth rate of the UK economy.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, expected changes in selling prices for completed 
houses and expected changes in site costs to complete. The directors estimate the discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current market 
assessments of the time value of money and risks appropriate to the housebuilding business. Accordingly the rate of 13.2% (2016: 15.7%) is 
considered by the directors to be the appropriate pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based upon 
past experience and expectations of future changes in the market.

It is considered that there are no reasonably likely changes in assumptions that would lead to an impairment.   
   
Impairment test for goodwill    
   
The group tests its goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that it might be impaired. The recoverable 
amount is determined using a value-in-use calculation. The value-in-use was determined by discounting expected future cash flows from the 
regions into which the legacy Banner businesses were integrated following their acquisition in March 2014. The first four years of cash flows were 
determined using cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management. The cash flows for year five 
onwards were extrapolated in perpetuity using an estimated growth rate of 2.25% (2016: 2.25%).   
 
The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, expected changes in selling prices for completed 
houses and expected changes in site costs to complete. The pre-tax discount rate of 13.2% (2016: 15.7%) has been used to determine the  
value-in-use. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based upon past experience and expectations of future changes in the market.

It is considered that there are no reasonably likely changes in assumptions that would lead to an impairment.
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6. TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

  Group Group 
  Year ended Year ended
  30 June 2017 30 June 2016
  £000 £000

a) Analysis of charge in the year
   
Group
Current tax:
United Kingdom corporation tax on profits for the year at 19.75% (2016: 20.0%)  6,517 375
Adjustments in respect of prior years  58 (191)
   
Total current tax  6,575 184
   
Deferred tax (note 18):    
Origination and reversal of timing differences  8,527 12,033
Adjustments in respect of prior years   - (34)
   
Total deferred tax  8,527 11,999
   
Total tax charge  15,102 12,183

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
   
The tax on the group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to 
profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation  70,445 58,003
    
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation in the United Kingdom at 19.75% (2016: 20.0%)  13,913 11,601
   
Effects of:  
Joint ventures’ results reported net of tax  82 21
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  66 43
Adjustments in respect of prior years  58 (225)
Re-measurement of deferred tax - change in tax rate  (103) (381)
Utilisation of tax losses  56 -
Effect of gains  (87) -
Non-taxable income  (120) (19)
Movement on unrecognised deferred tax  1,237 1,143
   
Total tax charge for the year  15,102 12,183
    
   
 
c) Factors affecting future tax charges:    
   
The main rate of corporation tax was reduced from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. A further change to the UK corporation tax rate 
to reduce it to 17% from 1 April 2020 was substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2016 on 6 September 2016. Deferred tax has been 
measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability settled.

Proposed changes were announced on 16 March 2016 to introduce new rules to restrict the deductibility of net interest costs as well as 
introducing changes to the existing corporation tax loss relief rules. These changes are expected to be introduced later this year with retrospective 
effect from 1 April 2017, however, as they are not yet substantively enacted they are not included in the calculation of the tax provision included 
in these accounts. There is a nil estimated impact for the group as a result of the new rules.  
   
 
    
    
   

84 85



CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
     
                                                                                                                                                                     Group
  
 Land and  Plant and 
 buildings Computers equipment Total
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost:     
   
At 1 July 2015 210 2,470 2,669 5,349
Additions - 332 582 914
Disposals - - (100) (100)
  
At 30 June 2016 210 2,802 3,151 6,163
Additions - 372 809 1,181
Disposals (1) - (181) (182)
  
At 30 June 2017 209 3,174 3,779 7,162 
 
Accumulated depreciation:     
   
At 1 July 2015 43 1,461 610 2,114
Charge in the year 3 544 732 1,279
Disposals - - (76) (76) 

At 30 June 2016 46 2,005 1,266 3,317
Charge in the year 2 447 794 1,243
Disposals (1) - (168) (169)
  
At 30 June 2017 47 2,452 1,892 4,391 
   
Carrying amount at 30 June 2017  162 722 1,887 2,771 
    
Carrying amount at 30 June 2016 164 797 1,885 2,846

Carrying amount at 1 July 2015 167 1,009 2,059 3,235
  

Land and buildings are freehold and heritable.
     
The company has no property, plant and equipment.     
   

9. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
     
        
    Company
    £000
   
Cost and carrying value of investments in subsidiary undertakings at 1 July 2016 and 30 June 2017  90,643

     
   
The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.    
   
The principal subsidiary undertakings of the group are shown below:
     
  % of £1 ordinary Accounting  
Name of Company  shares held year end Nature of business 
  
CALA Group Limited  100 30 June Administrative & holding company 
CALA 1999 Limited  100 30 June Administrative & holding company 
CALA Limited  100 30 June Administrative & holding company 
CALA 1 Limited  100 30 June Administrative & holding company 
CALA Management Limited  100 30 June Home building  
CALA Homes (North) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (East) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (West) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (Midlands) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (Chiltern) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (Thames) Limited *   100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (South Home Counties) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Homes (North Home Counties) Limited *  100 30 June Home building 
CALA Ventures Limited  100 30 June Home building 
 
      
 A full list of all subsidiary companies is given in the appendix on pages 105 to 106. 

All the above companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom and 100% of the voting rights are held by the group.   
   
CALA Management Limited is the group’s principal operating subsidiary. All other companies marked * above are agents of CALA Management 
Limited. All subsidiary undertakings are fully consolidated in these financial statements.    
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10. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES   
     
    
    Group  
    2017 
    £000 
 
Cost     
At 1 July 2016    515
Share of results of jointly controlled entities    (59)
Transfer to provisions    58 
Dividends received    (356)

At 30 June 2017    158 
     
The group’s share of assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities is as follows:     
     
   Group Group
   2017 2016 
   £000 £000
     
Current assets   158 526
Current liabilities   - (11) 
     
Net assets of jointly controlled entities   158 515 
    
 
The group’s share of current assets and liabilities in respect of joint ventures represents: trade debtors and creditors arising in the normal course 
of business; tangible stocks of land and work-in-progress on each development; and loan balances due to the joint venture partners.  
   
The group’s share of the income and expenses of jointly controlled entities is as follows:     
   
   Group Group
   2017 2016
   £000 £000

Revenue   - -
Expenses   (59) 22
     
   (59) 22
Tax   - (125)
     
Share of results of jointly controlled entities   (59) (103)
     
The principal joint venture companies are:     
   
 % of £1 ordinary Accounting Nature of
Name of company shares held  year end business 
CALA Evans Restoration Limited 50 30 June Home building 
CALA Campus Limited (in liquidation) 50 31 December Home building 
 
     
The above companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom.
    
The joint venture companies were formed for the purpose of carrying out large site-specific housing developments where the group considered 
the additional risks and funding requirements attaching to such projects merited a sharing arrangement. These developments are project 
managed by a subsidiary of the group on normal commercial terms negotiated on an arm’s-length basis.   
    
Each company has a properly constituted board which meets on a regular basis. Systems are in place to ensure regular reporting of financial 
information to each board, and to the group, and such financial information is sufficient to give a full understanding of the financial position of 
the joint venture company.    
 
Where required, each company is separately funded by a financial institution on either a non-recourse or limited guarantee basis, secured over 
the assets of that company. Additional unsecured loan funding is provided by the joint venture shareholders at varying rates of interest.  
  

11. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 
    
    
  Group Group
  2017 2016
  £000 £000
    
At 1 July  2,264 2,951
Disposals  (324) (980)
Imputed interest  104 293
   
At 30 June   2,044 2,264
   
 
Due within 12 months  175 252
Due greater than 12 months  1,869 2,012
   
Total at 30 June   2,044 2,264
   
   
Available for sale financial assets comprise shared equity loans, largely with a ten year term and variable repayment amounts, provided as part 
of sales transactions that are secured by way of a second legal charge on the related property. The assets are recorded at fair value, being the 
estimated future amount receivable by the group, discounted to present day values. The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into 
account the directors’ view of future house price movements, the expected timing of receipts and the likelihood that a purchaser defaults on a 
repayment. The directors revisit the future anticipated cash receipts from the assets at the end of each financial reporting period. The difference 
between the anticipated future receipt and the initial fair value is credited over the estimated deferred term to finance income, with the financial 
asset increasing to its full expected cash settlement value on the anticipated receipt date. Credit risk, which the directors currently consider to be 
largely mitigated through holding a second legal charge over the assets, is accounted for in determining fair values and appropriate discount 
factors are applied. The directors review the financial assets for impairment at each balance sheet date. There were no indicators of impairment 
at 30 June 2017.   
 

12. INVENTORIES 
    
    
    
  Group Group
  2017 2016
  £000 £000
    
Home building:    
Land and options  595,666 484,984
Part exchange inventories  25,868 41,583
Work-in-progress and other inventories  221,065 181,362
    
  842,599 707,929
    
 
   
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to £567.5 million (2016: £440.9 million).

Land creditors are shown in note 16.

Inventories with a carrying value of £194.1 million (2016: £248.1 million) have been pledged as security for the bank borrowings of the group.
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15. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
    
   Group Group
   2017 2016
   £000 £000

Current liabilities 
Loans and other borrowings   70,000 25,000
  
Non-current liabilities     
Loans and other borrowings   172,948 310,902
     
   
Finance costs, including bank arrangement fees and provisions for redemption premia, are allocated to periods over the term of the debt at a 
constant rate on the carrying amount.     
     
     
   Group Group 
   2017 2016
(a) Analysis by instrument:   £000 £000
     
Term loan   100,000 85,000
Revolving credit facility   - 120,000
Unsecured redeemable fixed rate loan notes   142,948 130,902
     
   242,948 335,902
    

In January 2017, the group amended its loan facilities by resetting the term loan facility back to its original value of £100 million. The maturity 
date of the facilities remains 21 March 2019, however the repayment profile has been adjusted. The revolving credit facility varies depending on 
the working capital requirements of the group and as such there are no fixed contractual interest payments. The amended bank facilities bear 
interest of LIBOR plus 3.25%. The unsecured redeemable fixed rate loan notes bear interest of 9% with a maturity date of 18 March 2023. 

14. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   

 Group Group Group Group
 2017 2017 2016 2016
 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
 £000 £000 £000 £000

Interest rate swaps: 
Non-current portion - (2,925) - (5,043)
Current portion - (167) - -

Total at 30 June - (3,092) - (5,043) 
     
 
The group has entered into interest rate swap arrangements to manage interest rate risks as explained in note 17. The swap arrangements expire 
on 21 March 2019. The group does not enter into any derivatives for speculative purposes.   
 
The arrangements are at fixed interest rates of between 1.003% and 2.420%, excluding margin.     
    
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 30 June 2017 was £130.0 million (2016: £140.0 million).  
This amount varies throughout the period of the swap arrangements. The remaining debt is at floating rates of interest.   
     
Changes in fair values of interest rate swaps are recorded within finance income in the income statement (note 5) and presented within the 
exceptional items and revaluations column.

The fair value of the instruments is based on the market price of these instruments at the balance sheet date. In accordance with IFRS 7, the 
interest rate swaps are considered to be level 2 with the fair value being calculated at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using 
market rates. 

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
   
   Group Group Company  Company
  2017 2016 2017 2016
  £000 £000 £000 £000
 
Current assets      
   
Trade receivables  34,816 6,495 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings  - - 146,248 133,706
Amounts owed by joint ventures  7,254 6,260 - -
Other receivables  5,018 8,805 554 554
Corporation tax  - 353 - -
Prepayments and accrued income  3,777 4,733 - -
      
  50,865 26,646 146,802 134,260
 
      
 All non-current receivables are due within five years from the end of the reporting period.    
    
Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing, and the group has no concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large 
number of customers and significant receivables secured on the underlying assets sold. The directors consider that the carrying value of trade 
receivables approximates their fair value.

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, bear interest at a market rate and are repayable on demand. No interest is applied to 
amounts due from joint ventures.

 Of the period end trade receivables the following were overdue but not impaired:     
    
    Group Group
    2017 2016
    £000 £000

Ageing of overdue but not impaired receivables      
   
Less than 3 months    454 539
Greater than 3 months    136 296
      
    590 835

      
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date 
credit was initially granted to the reporting date. The allowance for doubtful debts includes amounts due from companies in liquidation and 
the impairment recognised represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the present value of expected 
liquidation proceeds. 

 The carrying value of trade and other receivables are stated after the following allowance for doubtful receivables:   
    
At start of year    894 1,361
Charge for the year    - 13
Unused amounts reversed    (465) (458)
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectable    (3) (22)
      
At 30 June    426 894 
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15. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(b) Borrowing facilities     
   
The group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £200.0 million at 30 June 2017 (2016: £78.5 million) in respect of which all 
conditions precedent had been met.     
   
(c) Security
     
Bank borrowings of £150.0 million are secured by way of a bond and floating charge, guarantees and fixed charges granted by CALA Group 
Limited and the following main subsidiaries: CALA 1999 Limited, CALA Limited, and CALA Management Limited. A number of other bonds and 
floating charges, fixed securities, debentures and share pledges over land and assets have been granted by certain subsidiaries of the company 
in favour of the bank.     
     
   Group Group
   2017 2016
(d) Maturity analysis   £000 £000
     
Repayments due as follows:     
Within one year, or on demand   70,000 25,000
After more than one year   172,948 310,902
     
   242,948 335,902
Repayments due after more than one year are analysed as follows:     
Between one and two years   30,000 30,000
Between two and three years   - 150,000
Between three and four years   - -
Between four and five years   - -
After five years   142,948 130,902
  
   172,948 310,902

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   
     
 Group Group  Company Company 
 2017 2016  2017 2016
 £000 £000  £000 £000

Current liabilities:    
 
Trade payables:  

  Land - in development 73,449 44,633 - -
  Land - not yet acquired or in development 66,907 29,589 - -
  Other 136,133 94,062 - -
Amounts owed to group companies - - 381 454
Amounts owed to joint venture companies 191 192 - -
Other taxation and social security costs 59 1,415 - -
Other payables 6,599 1,558 - -
Accruals 10,683 8,621 - -
  
 294,021 180,070 381 454

  

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

   Group Group
   2017 2016
   £000 £000

Non-current liabilities     
 
Trade payables:      
  Land - in development   49,212 37,457
  Land - not yet acquired or in development   27,147 24,481
  Other   92 -
     
   76,451 61,938

    

Total trade payables include accruals of £216.7 million (2016: £136.2 million) for development land under contract. Total land payables also 
include £105.2 million (2016: £73.6 million) which is secured by way of legal charge against land acquired for development. Land payables are 
reduced for imputed interest, which is charged to the income statement over the credit period of the purchase contract.

The amounts owed to group companies bear interest at a market rate and are repayable on demand.

 

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The principal operational risks of the business are detailed on pages 50 to 51.        
 
i) Financial risks

 The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note presents basic 
information regarding the group’s exposures to these risks and the group’s objectives, strategy and process for measuring and managing 
exposure to them.

        
UK housing market price risk
        
The group is fundamentally affected by the level of UK house prices. These in turn are affected by factors such as credit availability, employment 
levels, interest rates, consumer confidence and supply of land with planning.       
 
Whilst it is not possible for the group to fully mitigate such risks on a national macroeconomic basis, the group does continually monitor its 
geographical spread within the UK, seeking to balance its investment in areas offering the best immediate returns with a long-term spread of its 
operations throughout the UK to minimise the risk of local microeconomic fluctuations.       
 
The UK housing market affects the valuation of the group’s non-financial assets and liabilities and the critical judgements applied by 
management in these financial statements, including the valuation of land and work-in-progress and brand.     
   
The value of the group’s available for sale financial assets is directly linked to the UK housing market. At 30 June 2017 these assets were carried 
at a fair value of £2.0 million (2016: £2.3 million).       
        
Sensitivity analysis
        
At 30 June 2017, if UK house prices had been 5% higher/lower, and all other variables were held constant, the group’s house price linked 
financial instruments, which are solely available for sale financial assets, would increase/decrease in value, excluding any affects of current or 
deferred tax by £0.1 million.
        
Interest rate risk
        
The group’s policy is to minimise the exposure to interest rates by ensuring an appropriate balance of fixed and floating rates. The group’s 
primary funding is at floating rates through its bank facilities. In order to manage the associated interest rate risk, the group uses interest rate 
swaps to vary the mix of fixed and floating rates. At 30 June 2017, the notional amount of these interest rate swaps was £130.0 million (2016: 
£140.0 million), of which £100.0 million were in effect at the year end (2016: £112.0 million). The fixed to floating rate net debt ratio was  
1: 2.14 (2016: 1: 2.22). The group has no formal target for a ratio of fixed to floating funding. The responsibility for setting the level of fixed rate 
debt lies with the directors and is continually reviewed in the light of economic data provided by a variety of sources. 
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17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis
        
If in the year ended 30 June 2017 UK interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower, then the group’s pre-tax profit would have increased/decreased 
by £1.0 million. This sensitivity has been prepared in respect of the direct impact of such interest rate change on the net financing expense of 
financial instruments only, and does not attempt to estimate the indirect effect such a change may have on the wider economic environment, such 
as house pricing and mortgage availability.        

Liquidity risk
        
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its obligations as they fall due. The group 
manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, matching expected cash flow timings of financial assets and 
liabilities with the use of term cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, overdrafts and committed revolving credit facilities. Funding headroom is 
maintained above forecast peak requirements.
        
The group’s banking arrangements outlined in note 15 are considered to be adequate in terms of flexibility and liquidity for its medium term cash 
flow needs, mitigating its liquidity risk. The group’s approach to assessment of liquidity risk is further outlined in the section of the Strategic Report 
relating to Financial Risk & Treasury Management which can be found on page 45.

Maturity of financial liabilities
        
The table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities into the relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet 
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

      
 Carrying Contractual Less than 1 - 2 2 - 5  Over
2017 amount cash flows 1 year years years 5 years
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Loans and borrowings 242,948 336,399 70,000 30,000 - 236,399
Trade and other payables 153,414 153,414 153,414 - - -
Land payables 216,715 218,184 140,438 48,109 16,217 13,420

Financial liabilities 613,077 707,997 363,852 78,109 16,217 249,819 
 
      
 Carrying Contractual Less than 1 - 2 2 - 5  Over
2016 amount cash flows 1 year years years 5 years
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Loans and borrowings 335,902 441,399 25,000 30,000 150,000 236,399
Trade and other payables 104,241 104,241 104,241 - - -
Land payables 135,005 136,203 74,910 41,254 13,059 6,980

Financial liabilities 575,148 681,843 204,151 71,254 163,059 243,379
       
 
Trade and other payables exclude amounts owed to joint ventures, tax and social security and other non-financial liabilities. The fair value of 
current borrowings approximates their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

Credit risk
 
The nature of the UK housing market and the legal framework surrounding it results in the group having a low exposure to credit risk.  
      
In the majority of cases the full cash receipt for each sale occurs on legal completion, which is also the point of revenue recognition under the 
group’s accounting policies. In certain specific circumstances the group has entered into shared equity loan arrangements (not applicable to 
the Company) which are classified as available for sale financial assets. The group has £2.0 million of available for sale financial assets which 
expose it to credit risk, although this asset is spread over a large number of properties. As such, the group has no significant concentration of 
credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.      
 

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
The group manages credit risk in the following ways:
- The group has a credit policy that is limited to financial institutions with high credit ratings as set by international credit rating agencies and has 
a policy determining the maximum permissible exposure to any single counterparty.
- The group only contracts derivative financial instruments with counterparties with which the group has an ISDA Master Agreement in place. 
These agreements permit net settlement, thereby reducing the group’s credit exposure to individual counterparties.    
 
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowance for losses, represents the group’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk.
        
Capital risk management
        
The capital structure of the group consists of net cash/debt of £228.4 million (2016: £248.7 million) being borrowings as detailed in note 15 
offset by cash and bank balances and equity of the group of £338.6 million (2016: £286.1 million) comprising issue capital, reserves and 
retained earnings as detailed in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard 
its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and meet its liabilities as they fall due, whilst maintaining an 
appropriate capital structure. Close control of deployment of capital is maintained by detailed management review procedures for authorisation 
of significant capital commitments, such as land acquisitions, capital targets for local management and a system of internal interest recharges, 
ensuring capital cost impact is understood and considered by all management tiers.       
 
Decisions regarding the balance of equity and borrowings, dividend policy and all major borrowing facilities are reserved for the board.  
If appropriate the group can manage its short-term and long-term capital structure by adjusting the level of ordinary dividends paid to 
shareholders (assuming the company is paying a dividend), issuing new share capital, arranging debt to meet liability payments, and selling 
assets to reduce debt.
        
ii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities      
  
Financial assets      
  
The carrying values and fair values of the group’s financial assets are as follows:     

 2017 2017 2016 2016 
 Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
 value value value value
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
     
Loans and receivables:     
 Trade and other receivables (note 13) 39,834 39,834 15,300 15,300
 Cash and cash equivalents 21,645 21,645 81,126 81,126
Assets at fair value through profit and loss:     
 Available for sale financial assets (note 11) 2,044 2,044 2,264 2,264
     
Total financial assets 63,523 63,523 98,690 98,690
      
  
Trade and other receivables excludes accrued income, prepayments, amounts owed by joint ventures and tax and social security.

Financial liabilities      
  
The carrying values and fair values of the group’s financial liabilities are as follows:     

 2017 2017 2016 2016
 Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
 value value value value
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
     
Liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:
 Derivative financial instruments (note 14) 3,092 3,092 5,043 5,043 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 
 Trade and other payables (note 16) 153,414 153,414 104,241 104,241
 Borrowings (note 15)  242,948  242,948 335,902 335,902
     
Total financial liabilities 399,454  399,454 445,186 445,186
    
 
 Trade and other payables exclude amounts owed to joint ventures, tax and social security and other non-financial liabilities.   
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION
  
The deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised comprises:     
      
      
    Group Group
    2017 2016
    £000 £000
      
Accelerated capital allowances    (412) (453)
Retirement benefit obligation    (1,631) (1,340)
Trading losses    (490) (8,430)
Derivative financial instruments    (587) (958)
Other timing differences    4,867 4,692
      
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets):      
Amount provided    1,747 (6,489)
      
Amount not provided    (3,509) (2,581)

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current reporting period:  
     
 Accelerated Retirement  Derivative  Other 
 capital  benefit financial Trading timing 
 allowances obligation instruments losses differences Total
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 July 2016 (453) (1,340) (958) (8,430) 4,692 (6,489)
Charged to the income statement 41 - 371 7,940 175 8,527
Credited to other comprehensive income - (291) - - - (291) 
     
At 30 June 2017 (412) (1,631) (587) (490) 4,867 1,747 
      
It is anticipated that the deferred tax asset in respect of trading losses will be utilised within one year, with the remaining assets or liabilities utilised 
or realised after one year. 

No recognition has been made in these financial statements for the deferred tax asset of £3.5 million (2016: £2.6 million) shown above as  
un-provided which relates to disallowed accrued interest. 

Furthermore, no recognition has been made in these financial statements for deferred tax assets held by jointly controlled entities in relation to 
commercial property trading losses. At 30 June the CALA share of unrecognised deferred tax assets in jointly controlled entities was £2.0 million 
(2016: £1.0 million).      
 
       
 

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

 The following table provides an analysis of financial assets and liabilities that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, 
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:
      
• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets;  
•  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the  

asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and  
•  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

    
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
  
Derivative financial liabilities - (3,092) - (3,092)
Trade and other payables - (153,414) - (153,414)
Borrowings - (242,948) - (242,948)  
Trade and other receivables - - - -
Available for sale financial assets - - 2,044 2,044 
  
Total - (399,454) 2,044 (397,410) 
  
     
  
     
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
  
Derivative financial liabilities - (5,043) - (5,043)
Trade and other payables - (104,241) - (104,241)
Borrowings - (335,902) - (335,902)
Trade and other receivables - 15,300 - 15,300
Available for sale financial assets - - 2,264 2,264 
 
Total - (429,886) 2,264 (427,622)

iii) Summary of methods and assumptions      
  
Interest rate swaps     
Fair value is based on market price of these instruments at the balance sheet date.    
   
Available for sale financial assets
The group determines the fair value of its available for sale financial assets through estimation of the present value of expected future cash flows.  
Cash flows are assessed taking into account expectations of the timing of redemption, future house price movements and the risks of default.  
An instrument-specific market assessed discount rate of 5.3% is used to determine present value via discounted cash flow modelling. If the 
discount rate were to be increased to 10%, the carrying value of the available for sale assets would decrease by £0.4m.  
   
Current borrowings     
The fair value of current borrowings and overdrafts approximates to the carrying amount because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. 
 
Non-current borrowings     
As the group’s bank debt is raised on a floating rate basis where payments are reset to market rates at intervals of less than one year, and the 
interest charged on the unsecured redeemable fixed rate loan notes accumulates is settled with the principal on maturity and is charged at a 
market rate, the fair value of non-current borrowings approximates to the carrying value reported in the balance sheet. 
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19. SHARE CAPITAL
    
     
   2017 2016 
   Number of Shares Number of Shares
 
Ordinary share capital:
     
‘A’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each   190,312,591 190,312,591
‘B’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   1,872,259 1,872,259
‘C’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   779,934 779,934
‘D’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   462,372 462,372
‘E’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   462,372 462,372
‘F’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   577,134 577,134
‘G1’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each   4,507,291 4,507,291
‘G2’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each   768,998 768,998
‘H1’ ordinary shares of £0.00001 each   12,558,894 12,558,894
‘H2’ ordinary shares of £0.00001 each   2,307,692 2,307,692
‘H3’ ordinary shares of £0.00001 each   52,500 52,500
 
At 30 June   214,662,037 214,662,037
 
     
 
   2017 2016
   £000 £000
 
Equity share capital:
     
‘A’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each   190 190
‘B’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   1,872 1,872
‘C’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   780 780
‘D’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   463 463
‘E’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   463 463
‘F’ ordinary shares of £1.00 each   577 577
‘G1’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each   4 4
‘G2’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each   1 1
‘H1’ ordinary shares of £0.00001 each   - -
‘H2’ ordinary shares of £0.00001 each   - -
‘H3’ ordinary shares of £0.00001 each   - -
 
At 30 June   4,350 4,350
 
     
    
The ‘A’ ordinary shares carry 75% of the votes attaching to all shares.     
 The ‘B’, ‘C’, ‘D’, ‘E’ and ‘F’ ordinary shares each carry 5% of the votes attaching to all shares.    
The ‘G1’, ‘G2’, ‘H1’, ‘H2’ and ‘H3’ ordinary shares have no voting rights.     
   
Each class of share is entitled pari passu to dividend payments or any other distribution.    

The ‘B’, ‘C’, ‘D’, ‘E’, ‘F’, ‘G1’ and ‘G2’ ordinary shares are held by members of the senior management team having been acquired at market 
value. Other than differences in voting rights disclosed above, these shares have identical rights to the ‘A’ ordinary shares.

Senior management hold the ‘H1’, ‘H2’ and ‘H3’ ordinary shares disclosed above. These shares have a number of conditions and vesting 
periods. The fair value of the shares was determined to be not materially greater than the purchase price resulting in any expense in the 
statement of comprehensive income for these shares being immaterial.     
  
  

CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

CALA GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2017

20. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
  
At 30 June 2017 the future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are:    
    
        
  Land and Land and Land and Plant and
  buildings buildings machinery machinery
  2017 2016 2017 2016
Group  £000 £000 £000 £000

- No later than 1 year  1,552 608 1,023 619
- Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years  5,989 2,813 1,643 1,883
- Later than 5 years  6,349 3,970 - -
      
  13,890 7,391 2,666 2,502
      
  
Operating lease payments primarily represent rentals payable by the group for certain office properties and motor vehicles.   
    

21. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
  
The group operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. All plans are held 
in the UK under UK regulatory frameworks.
    
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The group has no legal 
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior years. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.  
  
Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or 
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
        
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that 
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
      
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 
       
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.
 
The scheme is a funded, defined benefit scheme which closed to future accrual on 31 December 2015. Closure of the scheme to future accrual 
has reduced the value of scheme liabilities by £1.2 million in the year ended 30 June 2016 due to active members’ benefits now being linked 
to CPI revaluation rather than the rate of career average revalued earnings (CARE) revaluation. Prior to 1 January 2008 the Scheme was a final 
salary pension plan. All benefits accrued prior to 1 January 2008 are linked to the members’ Final Pensionable Salary at 31 December 2007. 
The Scheme closed to new members on 31 December 2007.

The Trustees are responsible for the governance of the defined benefit scheme with decisions regarding contributions and investments being 
made with the agreement of the company.        
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21. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
  
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:       
      2017 2016
        
Discount rate      2.70% 3.10%
RPI inflation      3.10% 2.85%
       
 
Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice taking into account mortality expectations based on members’ 
postcodes.
        
These assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in years for a pensioner retiring at age 65:    
      2017 2016
        
• Male      22.4 22.7
• Female      24.2 24.7

Retiring 20 years after the end reporting period:        
• Male      23.4 24.1
• Female      25.4 26.2
        
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumptions is:     
   
             Impact on defined benefit obligation  
 
     Change in Increase in Decrease in 
     assumption assumption assumption
        
Discount rate     0.25% decreases by 5% increases by 5%
RPI inflation     0.25% increases by 1% decreases by 1%
        
      Increase by Decrease by 
      1 year in 1 year in 
      assumption assumption
        
Life expectancy      increase by 4% decrease by 4%
        

The above sensitivity analysis on the discount rate is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.  
The change in RPI inflation assumption impacts on the CPI (Consumer Prices Inflation) and pension increase assumptions. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation 
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability 
recognised within the statement of financial position. 
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21. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
   
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:   
 2017 2016
 £000 £000
   
Present value of funded obligations 86,549 79,832
Fair value of plan assets (76,947) (72,383)
   
Deficit of funded plans 9,602 7,449
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
   
Total deficit of defined benefit pension plans 9,602 7,449
Impact of minimum funding requirement/asset ceiling - -
   
Liability in the balance sheet 9,602 7,449
      
  
 The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the accounting year is as follows:
      
 
 Present  Fair value  Present  Fair value 
 value of of plan  value of of plan 
 obligation assets Total obligation assets Total
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
       
At 1 July 79,832 (72,383) 7,449 72,862 (66,639) 6,223
       
Current service cost - - - 625 - 625
Interest expense/(income) 2,429 (2,222) 207 2,786 (2,591) 195
Gain on curtailment - - - (1,240) - (1,240)
       
 2,429 (2,222) 207 2,171 (2,591) (420)

Remeasurements:
•  Return on plan assets excluding amounts
   included in interest income - (3,772) (3,772) - (3,904) (3,904)
•   Gain from change in
   demographic assumptions (2,070) - (2,070) (608) - (608)
•     Loss from change in
   financial assumptions 9,288 - 9,288 7,879 - 7,879
• Experience losses - - - 154 - 154
      
 7,218 (3,772) 3,446 7,425 (3,904) 3,521

Contributions:     
• Employers - (1,500) (1,500) - (1,875) (1,875)
• Plan participants - - - 165 (165) -
Payments from plans:       
• Benefit payments (2,930) 2,930 - (2,791) 2,791 -
       
At 30 June 86,549 (76,947) 9,602 79,832 (72,383) 7,449

 2017   2016
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22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

      Group Group
      2017 2016
      £000 £000

Bank guarantees      67 157
Indemnities for performance bonds      29,340 31,504
       
 
The performance bonds consist of road, sewer and other development agreements entered into in the normal course of business.   
The company has also guaranteed the performance of certain subsidiary and joint venture obligations arising from normal trading agreements.

       

21. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)     
   
  
Plan assets are comprised as follows:        
      2017  2016 
      Quoted Quoted
      £000 £000
       
Equities      9,100 7,426
Property      3,204 3,126
Diversified growth fund      12,001 11,110
Global absolute return fund      11,779 12,126
Liability Driven Investment (LDI)      21,518 20,971
Multi Asset Credit (MAC)      18,723 17,391
Cash and cash equivalents      622 233
        
Total      76,947 72,383
        

The scheme does not hold unquoted assets. Plan assets held in trust funds are governed by UK regulations, as is the nature of the relationship 
between the group and the trustees.
 
Through its defined benefit pension plan, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:  
      
Asset volatility       
 
The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if assets underperform this yield, this will create a 
deficit. The Scheme holds a significant proportion of growth assets (equities, diversified growth fund and global absolute return fund) which are 
expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term while providing volatility and risk in the short-term. The allocation to growth assets is 
monitored such that it is suitable with the Scheme’s long-term objectives.      
 
Changes in bond yields       
 
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the Scheme’s liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the 
Scheme’s bond holdings.       
 
Inflation risk       
 
The majority of the Scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities (although, in most cases, 
caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation). The majority of the assets are either unaffected by or 
loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit.

Life expectancy       
 
The majority of the Scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase 
in the liabilities.       
 
The employer has agreed that it will aim to eliminate the Scheme deficit (as assessed on the on-going funding basis) by 31 December 2018.  
Following the closure of the Scheme in December 2015 no further employee contributions will be made. Expected employer contributions to the 
Scheme, in respect of deficit recovery, for the year ending 30 June 2017 are £1.5 million. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis and 
the next triennial valuation is due to be completed as at 6 April 2018.      
 
 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 21 years.

Defined contribution schemes       
 
The company operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes are held 
separately from those of the company in funds under the control of trustees. The total cost charged of £3.0 million (2016: £2.2 million) 
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at 30 June 2017 all contributions 
due in respect of the current reporting period had been paid over to the schemes (2016: outstanding contributions totalled £0.2 million).

23. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in 
this note. Transactions between the group and its joint ventures are disclosed below:     
 
      Group Group
      2017 2016
      £000 £000

Relating to joint ventures:       
 
Amounts owed by joint ventures      7,254 6,260
Fees payable to joint ventures      (191) (192)
       
Key management, as defined under IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ includes directors and members of the Operations Board.  
The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:     
   
   
 Year ended Year ended
 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
 £000 £000

Key management remuneration:   
   
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3,475 3,098
Post-employment benefits 265 306
 
 3,740 3,404 
 

 2017 2016
 £000 £000

Loans from related parties:   
   
At start of year 130,902 120,104
Loans advanced during the year - 62
Loans repaid during the year - (319)
Interest charged 12,046 11,055
   
At 30 June 142,948 130,902

Loans from related parties include the unsecured redeemable fixed rate loan notes held by shareholders (note 15).
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24. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The group holds a joint arrangement agreement with O&H Properties Limited (‘OHP’) in relation to the development of two sites in the North 
Home Countries region. The terms of the joint arrangement are that OHP offer suitable residential sites with outline consent to CALA and both 
parties jointly decided to develop them under this joint arrangement. Site specific development and build contracts have been entered into and 
voting rights and key decisions are split on an equal basis, consequently no party is deemed to exert control.

CALA is responsible for sales, construction and project management. The arrangement provides a 50% share of revenue, costs and profit on 
the development to each party and in accordance with IFRS 11 the group’s share of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are recorded within 
CALA Management Limited and included in these consolidated accounts.

 The group’s share of development assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses included within these financial statements is as follows:

         Group Group
         2017 2016
         £000 £000

Assets:     
Work-in-progress         3,955  1,514
Trade receivables         33  - 
Cash         3,220 -

Total Assets         7,208 1,514
      
Liabilities:      
Trade payables         (5,608) (1,514)

Total liabilities         (5,608) (1,514)
      
Net Assets         1,600 -
      
Profit & Loss Account      
Revenue         7,395 -
Cost of sales         (5,795) -

Gross Profit         1,600 -

The group holds additional debtor balances of £9.2 million (2016: £2.9 million) in respect of WIP expenditure funded from CALA Management 
Limited in respect of construction which has been invoiced to the joint arrangement at year end. 

In addition to taking 50% of development profit, CALA Homes Limited receives a management fee directly from OHP for project management of the 
development which is recorded in revenue (2017: £1.1 million, 2016: £0.3 million). At 30 June 2017 £0.1 million remained unpaid (2016: nil).

25. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate and ultimate parent company is Haut Investments Limited. Haut Investments Limited is the largest and smallest group in which the 
results of CALA Group (Holdings) Limited is consolidated. Haut Investments Limited is owned in equal share and controlled by Legal & General 
Capital Investments Limited and Patron Haut LP.

The subsidiary undertakings of CALA Group (Holdings) Limited at 30 June 2017 are shown below.  All companies are wholly-

owned and incorporated in the UK.  CALA Management Limited is the group’s principal operating subsidiary, and those companies 

marked * are agents of CALA Management Limited.

CALA 1 Limited Administrative & holding company 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Group Limited Administrative & holding company 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

CALA 1999 Limited Administrative & holding company 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

CALA Limited  Administrative & holding company 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

CALA Management Limited Home building 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

CALA Homes (East) Limited * Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes (Midlands) Limited * Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Homes (Chiltern) Limited * Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Homes (Thames) Limited * Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Homes (West) Limited * Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes (North) Limited * Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes (North Home Counties) Limited * Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Homes (South Home Counties) Limited * Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Ventures Limited Home building 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

Banner Homes Group Limited Administrative & holding company 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Management Limited Administrative & holding company 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Construction Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Homes Central Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Homes Bentley Priory Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Homes Ventures Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Developments Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Homes Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Homes Southern Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner Homes Midlands Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Land Investments Limited *** Home building 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

CALA (ESOP) Trustees Limited Trustee 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Land Investments (Bearsden) Limited Home building 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

CALA Homes (Aberdeen) Limited Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Developments Limited Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA
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CALA Finance Limited Development funding 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes Limited Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes (Motherwell) Limited Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Properties Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes (Scotland) Limited Home building 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Homes (Southern) Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Trustees Limited Trustee 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Homes (Yorkshire) Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Homes (Cults) Limited Home building 5 Mid New Cultins, Edinburgh, EH11 4DU

Banner Freehold Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

The Advantage Collection Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Banner (Spare) Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Jimcourt Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

Care Secured Limited Home building 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Properties (Banbury) Limited** Commercial property 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Properties (Holdings) Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Properties (Slateford) Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Properties (Cowcaddens) Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Properties (Glasgow) Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

Trueline Systems Limited IT services 54 The Causeway, Staines, Surrey, TW18 3AX

CALA Properties (Ayr) Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

CALA Properties (Central) Limited Commercial property 52-54 Rose Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1HA

Business Homes CALA Limited Commercial property 168 Bath Street, Glasgow, G2 4TP

* Agent of CALA Management Limited
** In liquidation
*** Parent company audit guarantee provided (TECH 07/13BL)

APPENDIX – SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES THE HOME OF AWARD-WINNING LIVING

We are extremely proud to have won a range of prestigious industry awards across 2016 and 2017 that acknowledge the scale of our 

growing business.

Nine of our site managers won NHBC Pride in the Job quality awards. We achieved a gold award from independent research company   

In-house Research for Customer Satisfaction, further endorsed with Customer Service Excellence at the Scottish Home Awards.

What House? Awards are the pinnacle of achievement and we are delighted to have won UK’s Best Large Housebuilder Silver 2016.  

Our success continued in the Housebuilder Awards, winning Best Medium Housebuilder.

During 2016, CALA installed defibrillators at every active site and office across the group, resulting in being awarded Construction  

Company of the Year at the UK Heart Safe Awards 2016.

These accolades reflect the hard work and commitment of the whole CALA team, and are testimony to the group’s dedication to design  

and construction excellence and our unwavering focus on customer service.

UK’S BEST LARGE  
HOUSEBUILDER

BEST MEDIUM  
HOUSEBUILDER

CUSTOMER SERVICE 
EXCELLENCE9 WINNERS

CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION

CONSTRUCTION  
COMPANY OF THE YEAR

CALA AT GREAT KNEIGHTON, CAMBRIDGE, CAMBRIDGESHIRE
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